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Five-Year Financial Summary

Intergraph Corporation

Intergraph Corporation is a worldwide provider
of technical software, systems integration, and
a variely of professional services. Intergraph's
divisions focus on specific vertical industries in
which the company is a leading vendor or
sees the potential to become one.

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(In thousands except per share amounts)
Revenues $532,061  $690454  $914,8%0 1,005,007 $1,095,625
Reorganization charges (credit) (384) 8,498 15,596 15,343 1,095
Income (loss) from operations 8,087 (23,641)  (67,440) (100998)  (38,.242)
Gains on sales of assets 11,243 49 546 13,223 112,533 4,858
Income (loss) from continuing operations 19,942 10,095 (78,561) (6728  (53,490)
Discontinued operation (1) — — 6,984  (12906)  (16,747)
Net income (loss) 19,942 10,095 (71577) (19,634 (70237
Net income (loss) from continuing operations per share,

basic 40 20 (1.60) (.14) (1.11)

diluted 39 20 (1.60) (14) (11D
Net income (loss) per share,

basic 40 20 (1.46) (41) (1.46)

diluted 39 20 (1.46) (41) (1.46)
Working capital 177,638 184,051 168307 216,520 204,534
Total assets 458,010 514,908 584,944 695,974 720,989
Total debt 3,733 31,030 62,926 83,213 104,665
Shareholders’ equity 295,213 278,000 276,700 355332 308783

(1) See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this annual report for a complete discussion of this transaction and its impact on the

Company's results of operations and financial position.

Information contained in this report may include statements that are forward-looking as defined in Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Actual results
could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. Additional information concerning factors that could cause actual results to differ mate-
rially from those in the forward-looking statements is contained in “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this

Annual Report.
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90071 was a successful year for Intergraph. We started the year with one key goal — profitability.
This was the first year without our treditional hardware business and the first year to operate and
report as five separate businesses. | am pleased to report that we met our goal — each business
produced a profit from cperations in every quarter of 2007,

Restructuring for profitability

We have restructured our worldwide operations around our core businesses, taking care to maintain
enough infrastructure to support their future growthr We eliminated $27 million in debt and invested
almost $54 million in product development. We ended 20071 with income from operations of
$8.0 million and net income of $19.9 million on revenue of $532.1 million.

C|ear|y, restructuring around our core businesses provided the management focus needed to maintain
proritabiiity as we encountered a global recession last spring and saw 4 further slow down in spend—
ing following the terrorist attacks in September 2001 . Our profits were more modest then we had
p|armed going into QOOT/ but we were able to sustain them quarter to quarter, even as many

of our coHeagues n the tec|’mo|ogy sector begdn to take rreavy losses.

Restructuring for accountability

A major benefit of last year's refocusing is that it gives greater vislility into the five businesses that
form the corporation. You will find in this report a new level of financial detail for each business, a\ong
with a report from each business unit president on the year's accomplishments and plans fer 2002.

| encourage you to invest some time to learn about each business. The five of them represent the
markets in which lntergrdph has been 4 pioneer and continues to be an industry leader.

Our businesses:

Intergraph Government Solutions

Our Government Solutions business had a strong year in terms of profitability end growth of its
core services business. Overall, professional services grew from 509% of the revenue base to 67%
in 2001 The division has an excellent reputation for providing solid support and products for
systems integration, emergency management, and information assurance — important elements in

the quest for homeland security and the war on terrorism. The division produced revenues of

$134 .1 million and operating income of $10 million in 2007,
Intergraph Mapping and GIS Solutions

This division was the last of the five to become a standalone core business. During 2001, we
completed the plans to consolidate our commercial and government mapping and GIS organizations
into a single international business. Since 197 3 when our first commercial customer required digital
maps, Intergraph has had & tradition of technical excellence in maoping and GIS. In 2009, this
division will introduce & number of enhanced products that will follow in that tradition. Revenues
for 2001 were $136.8 million with operating income of $5.1 million.

Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore

Formerly, we called this division Process & Building Solutions. The new name reflects business
initiatives and grovvth areas the division is pursuing from its position of |eadership in the grobal
plant creation market. For 20071, the division produced revenue of $116.5 million and
operating income of $6.8 million.




Intergraph Public Safety and Utilities & Communications

For our Public Safety business, 2002 should be a strong year, but it may prove to be snother
cha“enging year for Utilities & Communications. There is pent-up demand for the Utilities &
Communications products, but companies are hesitant to imp\ement major projects in a weak
economy. For 2001, the division produced revenue of $1715.8 million and operating income

of $5.3 million.
Z/| Imaging

Our joint venture with Carl Zeiss of Germany (Intergraph owns 609%) continues to do

well, although the photogrammetric workstations, scanners, and cameras that are Z/1 Imaging’s key
products are capital-intensive investments for customers and therefore dependent upon the economy.
In July, Z/ Imaging will introduce a new Digital Mapping Cdmerd, an aerial camera made up of
eight synchronously operating cameras that provide a single high-resolution image. The new digital
camera reaches ground resolutions of better than two inches. Z/! Imaging produced revenues of
$38.6 million and operating income of $4.5 million in 2007

Update on the lawsuits against ntel

Both lawsuits are on schedule for their trial dates. The first suit was filed in November 1997
in the U.S. District Court in Birmingham, Alsbama, and is set for a jury trial in January 2003.
Our second patent infringement suit was filed in July 2001 in the U.S. District Court in
Marshall, Texas, and is set for a bench trial in July 2002 In both cases, we believe our
patents are valid and that Intel's products infringe them. We also believe that this litigation

is essential to protect our intellectual property.

Outlook for 2002

Until the signs of a global economic recovery are stronger, it is difficult to predict demand for

our products and services. Neverthdess, each division has laid out & clear roadmap to maintaining
proFitabi(ity, even in the current economy, and the businesses have positioneo[ themselves to respond
quickly to any improvement in the economy. In 2002, we will continue to keep expenses in line
with revenues, while we introduce new products and service oFFerings to build our businesses.

As we did last year, we will invest about 109 of revenues in research and development,

the engine that drives the new technology that keeps existing customers and attracts new ones.

In summary, we made substantial progress in 20071, We achieved our primary gosl of profitability.
It is gratifying that investors have reacted to our return to profitability, and Intergraph’s stock price

more than doubled last vear. Intergraph is stronger financially than it has been in years. We have an
established and expanding customer base, and we have the infrastructure and management account-
ability in place to meet the challenge of performing in this uncertain global economy.

Net Cash Position* (in millions)
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*Cash less short-term and long-term debt. {1) Short-term and long-term debt.




|ntergraph Government Solutions

Providing integrated |T solutions to help clients succeed.

- “We were proud to stand behind our clients during and after the September

11 attacks and will continue to partner with government agencies — federal,

~state, and local — and with commercial organizations to provide security and

decision support technologies in this critical time.”

Dr. William Salter, President

Intergraph Government Solutions
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Best Business Practices

The U/SS Theedore Roosevelt recently deployed as part of Operation
Enduring Freedom with a Joint Aviation Technical Data Integration system
installed to allow access to current maintenance data and expertise. (Photo by
Photographer’s Mate Airman Apprentice Jason Scarboraugh, courtesy of the
U.S. Naw).

The Tennessee Roadway Information Management System provides data,
photos, and video related to roadway conditions, traffic flow, bridge conditions,
and accident locations for more than 87,000 miles of roads and 20,000
bridges statewide.
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|GS provides U.S. military installations digital base management systems
that integrate technology, data, applications, and processes throughout the
base lifecycle.

|GS supports dozens of military and commercial enterprises with their enfire
T infrastructure, from the network backbane to the heart of any enterprise
system — security and information assurance.

The Supply Chain Management Environment is @ collaborative logistics
Web-enabled work space that provides the Air Force end-to-end visibility
of the supply chain.




ntergrapn Government Solutions (|GS) is a professiona|
services and solutions company that provides management
consulting, tecnno|ogy, and integrated solutions in the
commercial and government sectors. IGS partners with
clients to help them achieve their goals through intelligent
dep|oyment of best practices and information tecnno\ogy
(IT). In 2001, IGS ranked 64th on Washington
Technology's list of leading Federal T prime contractors,
and was 7 5th on the 2001 VARBusiness 500 list of
top |T solution providers in North America.

IT services market growth

/\ccording to Gartner Dataquest, the T market is making a
marked shift toward services. Within three years, 45% of all [T
spending worldwide will be services-related. In response to
these trends, IGS has transitioned to an organ‘rzationa\ structure
focused on de|rvering professiona{ services. More than 679 of
2001 |GS revenue derived from services. 1GS delivers
solutions that span the tecnno|ogy spectrum by deve\oping
long-term partnerships with clients to helo them succeed.

Although the majority of 1GS business remains in the federdl
government, IGGS serves a diverse clientele in state and local
governments and commercial industries such as manufacturing,
heslth care, finance, energy, media, and communications.

Homeland security and the war on terrorism
The terrorist attacks of September 11 have dramaticslly altered
the T landscape as companies and government agencies seek to
implement security, disaster recovery, and emergency response
technologies. Since the attacks, IGS eamed ¢ reputation for
providing clients solid support and expertise in emergency man-
agement, systems integration, information assurance, and video
analysis. Homeland security and the war on terrorism will remain

a major focus for IGS in 2002.

IGS has many years of experience developing decision support
solutions for emergency management and response. At the
Naval District Washington (ND\X/}, which provrdes emergency
response in the National Capital Region, IGS heloed the Navy
design and support regional and emergency operations centers

to manage emergency services, On September 11, a computer-
aided dispatch system delivered minute-by-minute information to
support the NDW in moving facilities to THREATCON Delta,
managing response, and assessing casualties at the Pentagon. IGS
also provided training and on-site direction, support, and mainte-
nance as the NDW required‘ IGS s deve|oping similar solutions
for a number of other installations.

IGS s supporting several military system integration projects,
including the Joint Avistion Technical Data lntegratron
(JATDD/Mrd—Trer program for the U.S. Naval Air
Command. JATDI is an integrated digital environment (IDE)
that delivers up-to-date technical data and maintenance
expertise to support the H-60 Blackhawk helicopter and
EA-6B Prowler aircraft. 1GS installed the system on the

USS Theodore Roosevelt, USS Card Vinson, and other carrier
groups supporting Operation Enduring Freedom. 1GS supports
other weapon system IDEs for the Arrn\/, Navy, and Air Force.

The Supp|y Chain Management Environment (SC/\/\E) provides

a seamiess collaborative rogistrcs Web space for Warner-Robins
Air Logistics Center, Georgra. IS also continues to integrate

ruggedized Systems for the Navy. "SC/\/]E ) It .
1s ds revolutionary to

the DOD and Air Force
/ogr'st/'cs management as AQOL
and Yshoo! are to the com-

”

mercial business world
Roy Abbott

Supp/y Chain Management
Environment Team Lead,

Warner-Robins Air Log/str‘cs
Center, Georg/d

Demand for information assurance
and secure network solutions has
grown significantly in the post-
/11 world. Buiding on 4 long
history of networking and experi-
ence with developing lifecycle
information assurance programs,
IGS is well positioned to meet
this critical need. In 20071, 1GS

provided security expertise to a

number of govermnment agen-

cies and supported network - ‘ ‘ ‘
The integration project... wads

very complicated, but with the
technical expertise Intergraph
brought, it went very smoothly.”
Rick Sandy
Information Technology Manager,
Bio-Imaging Technologies

or system backup projects at
the U2 Directorate st
Warmner-Robins Air Force Base,-
Fort Knox, Kentucky,- Fort
Belvorr, Virginia; and other
installations. Through its part-

nersnip with \X/oridCom, IGS

is providing network support
to companies in & variety of
commercial industries.

Since September 171, 1GS Video Analyst™ System hes sttracted

increased attention as a comprehensive video enhancement and
analysis solution for lew enforcement and intelligence agencies. In
9001, Video Anslyst was inducted into the Space Technology
Hall of Fame in recognition of its use of NASA»de\/ebped
Video Image Stabilization and

Registration (\/|S/\R) technolo-
gy. 1GS dlso offers video analy-
sis expertise and services to

“The gredtest benefit of

( the Tennessee Roac/vvay
Information Mansgement
System) is that we now have
timely access to our mission-

federsl, state, and local govern-
ment agencies nationwide.

E-business integration critical data. By improving

IT integration for e-business access to data, we are able
to meke better and more

timely decisions.”

or e-government remains &
high-growth area across the

IT services market. 1GS offers
considerable experience in
legacy systems and e-business
integration and led the industry
in adopting message broker

Mike Shinn
Chief Administrative Officer,

Tennessee Department of

Transportatron, GEOWorld

middleware-based tecnno|ogy,

IGS anticipates strong growth in demand for e-government
solutions for state and local government. At the Tennessee,
South Carclina, and Aldoama departments of transportation,
IGS is supporting ongoing efforts to develop roadway informa-
tion management systems that provide accurate, up—to—date
traffic counts, pavement conditions, and safety information.

A growing concern is portab|e computing, and IGS consultants
are helping the Nevada Department of Transportation plan for
integrating wireless technology into its systems.

*VISAR Licensed from the National Aeronautical and Space Administration under
U.S. Patent Application Seriol No. 09/364,919.




Intergraph Mapping and GIS Solutions

Bringing it together with innovation and leadership.

“Bringing innovation to the mapping and GIS industry IS an |ntergrap|'m Mapping and GIS
Solutions tradition. We have introduced one new technology after another, contributing
to the growth of this industry into a market worth more than & billion dollars & year' .
G|oba“\/, |ntergrdphls Q5—year market and techno‘og\/ Ieddership is evident in the
successful, real-world solutions we implement for customers year after year.

“From manasging disaster evacuations to supporting m1|itary efforts to coHecting parce\
and land information for city p'anning, |ntergraph)s mapping, G|S, and cartographic
technologies play a critical role in history-making events and
everyddy activities. Going forward, we will continue to

endeavor to surpass customer expectations, sustain growth and
market }eddership, and further our technology innovation by
bringing together solutions that empower our customers.
Preetha Pu|usani, President
Intergraph Mapping and GIS Solutions
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“Bringing It Together” conveys our commitment to
bringing together the right elements — products and
services, open technology and data integration,
partners and people — to help customers implement
successful solutions.

With the introduction of the next generation of GeoMedia producs in
2002, we remain committed to open systems solutions that connect
and integrate geospatial and business information throughout

the enferprise.




ntergraph Mapping and GIS Solutions brings togethe(
geospatia| and information techno\ogy (|T) to he\p customers
achieve their business goals. We serve government agencies
and commercial enterprises worldwide with end-to-end
geospatial solutions for cartography and map production,
and for enterprisewide mapping and GIS.

With the unfortunate events of September 11, relidble
and accurate geospatial information is now a core element
of emerging initiatives for homeland security. We continue
to provide geospatial technology and services to our valued
customers in support of their rebui‘ding efforts, as well as
military and intelligence operations that are working to
prevent such occurrences in future.

Solutions equa| success for customers

The future of our mapping and GIS business is in solutions —
a combination of open techno\ogy, enterprise implementation,
and consulting services. Cur experience confirms that the map-
ping and GIS community wants more from a vendor than just
a box of software. Todd\/, customers need an mdustry partner
who can help them make the right decisions on data models,
data mdanagement, and workflows. They wadnt a partner who
provides industry-based solutions and products and offers a
wide range of services to meet business-critical requirements.

“Bringing ft Together“ conveys our commitment to bringing
together the right elements — products and services, open
techno|ogy and data integration, partners and people — to help
customers implement successful solutions. Our industry solutions
have been implemented worldwide by local, state, federal,

and national governments; transportation agencies; mapping
agencies; the military,» civil aviation autharities; and educational
institutions. | hese customers employ

providing the tools needed to develop business-to-business
and custom client applications. In 20071, we fused core
competencies with selected, significant enhancements in
GeoMedis to develop industry—spedﬁc workflow solutions for
transportation, land information, and public works applications.
This greatly expands the level of functionality provided today
in the GecMedia core products. We will introduce our next

generation of GeoMedia products in 2009,
Digital Cartographic Studio (DCS) provides 4 suite of

cartogrdphic tools to produce aesthetica”y p|easing, c[ed_r,
and concise maps and charts. DCS tools may also be used
to support production and revision of topo|ogica||y dean
databases for mapping.

The Modular GIS Environment (MGE) product suite prov{des

production-ready capabilities for automating, managing, analyzing,
and presenting GIS data, and is interoperable with GeoMedia.

Professional services bridge the gap

Professional services often bridge the gap between technology
and productivity. Intergraph Mapping and GIS Solutions' pro-
fessional services team provides dlients with quality consulting
services to implement state-of-the-art mapping and GIS tech-
nologies and tools and to increase the efficiency of their opera-
tions while reducing their costs. Our experienced team delivers
professional services that include system integration, consulting,
project services, and imolementation.

IntelliWhere applies ingenuity to the LBS market
IntelliWhere ™ a division of Intergraph Mapping and GIS
Solutions, was created in December 2000 to focus on the
rapidly developing location-based services (LBS) market. This
market continues to unfold new business opportunities because
of the recent expansion worldwide of

our broad array of products and

applications as primary solutions or to

integrate with their current systems.

Aveas of expertise include:

* Aeronautical information
management and charting

i Cartography and map product\'on

* Enterprise GIS

* Image anelysis

* Land information management

* Location-based services

* Public works and utilities
management

* Terrain analysis

® Transportation management

“The City of Winnipeg will reap
the benefits fom a /u//—funct/’on, single-
source GIS solution. Implementing
/nfergraph's GeoMedis ,oroducts He/ps
us further our goal of integrating and
sharing critical data enterprisewide
with city emp/oyees and making data
pub//c/y available to city resiclents.”
Brian Lund
Land Information Services Administrator,
City of Winnipeg Planning,
Property & Development Department

wireless data networks and positioning
systems. |t has proven a logical market
focus for \ntergraph, considering our exist-
ing expertise in geographic information
systems and the established success of
our GeoMedia technology.

Intelli\Where's focus is business-to-business.
Target markets include enterprises with
mobile workforces and/or mobile customers,
telecommunications and utilities companies,
and systems integrators. Opportunities also
exist in government, fransportation, the
mi|itary, and disaster management.

Intell Where's first product, [ntelliWhere LocationServer, was

Innovation and interoperability are at the core
At the core of our innovative solutions is |ntergraph’s industry-
proven mapping and GIS technology — the GeoMedis®,
Digitsl Cartographic Studio, and MGE platforms. We continue
to be committed to open systems solutions and data interoper-
ability. As a founding and principal member of the Open GIS
Consortium (OGC), |nter9raph is a visible force in ongoing
OGC initiatives for industry standards and spearheads interop-
erability in the GIS and IT marketplace.

The GeoMedia product suite connects and integrates geospa-
tial and business information throughout the enterprise, while

released in September 2001 . Built on GeoMedis technology,
it is an innovative, scalable server platform for LBS dep|oyment
and has established early success with deployment in key
markets worldwide. In 20092, Inteli\NWhere continues to spply
its ingenuity by introducing Intell Where OnDemand, a new
vector-based mapping software solution for persona| digita|
assistants (PD/A\S),' a Web and wireless tracking system; and
workforce management subscription services.

1Daratech Inc. projects worldwide core-business revenues for the mapping and GIS industry (softwate, services, ond
hardware) in 2001 to reach $1.6 billion.




Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore

Creating and managing knowledge as a strategic asset:
information systems for the plant lifecycle.

.- “Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore is committed to providing value to customers
i engdged in the design, construction, and operation of p|dnts by delivering software,
- services, and solutions to achieve breakthroughs in eFFiciencyA The compdny)s 93 years

=& in the industry and its |eddership position offer customers and prospects an unmatched
.f‘s‘

depth of experience as an enterprise
engineering solutions provider. We are

the undisputed leader in engineering
information systems for the plant.”

Gerhard Sallinger, President
Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore

Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore is expanding ifs core
business of plant design and construction by focusing on
specific key markets — offshore, power, and biopharmaceuticals.
Through new initiatives in 2002, such as materials procurement
and managsment and greenfield information management and
handaver, the division is evolving its business beyond its
traditional plont design point products to enferprise engineering
sofutions across alt industry segments.




ntergraph Process, Power & Offshore is expanding its core
business of providing softwere for the design and construe-
tion of plants by focusing on specific key markets — offshore,
power, and biopharmaceuticals — and through new initia-
tives to provide engineering iiiecycie solutions across 4l
industry segments. The division changed its name in January
2002 to more dearly reflect its industry focus in markets in
which it holds leading positions.

In 2001, Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore achieved

a revenue share of 319 of the total plant creation market,
according to Daratech Inc., the research and technology assess-
ment firm. The division's 2001 market share is more than one-
and-one-half times that of the closest competitor and more
then two-and-one-half times the No. 3 competitor.

Market Trend: Engineering IT to preserve
information value

Both engineering, procurement, and construction (EPC)
companies and plant owner/operators face numerous competitive
pressures to deliver projects and products faster, better, and
ciieaper. Engineering T is seen as a mechanism to achieve the
cost and time savings needed to address these pressures. As 4
result, industry [T spending is increasing significantly. Industry
anaiysts predict process industry T spending will more than
double over the next five years. This increased spending includes
establishing systems for the creation, management, and use of
plant information. These systems generate and store information
that has value to both EPCs and ownei/operators who use it
to increase productivity while reducing costs and time-to-market.

Engineering [T providers are being impacted by their customers’
increased demand for integration and total piant |iiecyc|e solutions.
Intergraph Process, Power & Oflshore continues developing and
delivering new technologies, software, and services that address
demands for creating, managing, and reusing plant information
while preserving its value throughout the lifecycle.

Growing core business

The industry’s evolution toward engineering IT to manage
iiiecyde information does not diminish the need for plant
crestion tools. In 2001, Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore
continued enhancing and supplying software to support its core
business by expanding its design system capabilities to address
speciiic industry requirements for offshore rigs and power and
biopharmaceutical facilities. Recent and upcoming relesses of
Intergraph Plant Design System (PDS™) are examples of this
strategy. PDS now features enhancements simed at the special
design requirements in the biopharmaceutical and power indus-
tries. The PDS 7.7 release, scheduled for the second half of
920092, spedifically addresses offshore project needs.

Opportunities across the total plant lifecycle
As the industry’s demand for solutions to manage iiiec_yde
information increased, intergrapii Process, Power & Offshore
evolved from a product-driven vendor to a plant information
systems provider. The division's strategy moves its business
beyond plant design point products to enterprise engineering

solutions. Begun in 2007, two stratesic initiatives broad-
ened the division’s scope to include materials procurement
and mandgement (Wi’]iCi’i is the step beyond design and
construction into procurement) and greeniieid information
management and handover into plant operations.

Acauired in December 2000, the MARIAN materials
procurement énd management system showed strong growth
in 2001, especially in Europe. New, major customers includ-

ed Teciinip—Coiiexip, Saipem, Rhoditech, BP (Germany),
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries, and Lilama.

Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore identifies information
handover between the EPC and plant owner as the critical
point in the information asset's lifecycle. There is an opportunity
for both the EPC and r
plant owner to reduce “The fact that Intergraph Process, |
the cost of the handover | Power & Offshore sustained its
process. The plant leadership in 2007 and grew
owner.iurtiier be‘”eﬁts by | software revenue in key areas is no
beginning operations small achievement given the state of
with vital and accuate | 1\ economy st yeor. The
company's software lease model
continues to attract customers and

strengtnen /ntergrdpfi s business.
predefined, preconfigured i

SmartPlant Expert best Charles Foundy"er
oractice solution designed President and Founder of |
for “near-term” retun on Daratech Inc.

information.

Introduced in 2001,

Information Handover is &

investment. For exampie,
with joint planning by the owner/operator and EPC in eatly

project stages, they can streamline handover from projects into
plant operations and reduce handover costs by up to 60%.

Handover is the first step toward reducing total iiieqzde costs
through information dsset manegement.

Delivering an engineering integration platform
Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore is developing The
Engineering Framework (TEF) to meet industry demands for
an integrated engineering piatiorm. The Engineering Framework
replaces point-to-point and centralized integration with distrib-
uted, data-warehoused integration — the ideal environment for
engineering data management, management of didnge, giobai
data access, and reuse of information. Intergraph Process,
Power & Olfshore delivers its first TEF-enabled spplications

in 2009.

Positioned for growth

Bui|ding on its dominant market presence and industry expertise,
intergrdpii Process, Power & Offshore hes formulated & business
strategy that positions the division for growth in 2002 snd
beyond. The division continues to broaden its software,
solutions, and services to automate best practices and address
industry engineering T requirements. anougii these initiatives,
|ntergrapii Process, Power & Oiisiiore will remain the world's
premier plant information systems provider.




Intergraph Public Safety and Utilities & Communications

Meeting the demand for integrated geospatial sclutions.

“During the year, we continued to grow our |eadm9 market share in the pub|ic

safety sector. As a compdany we were able to help support both response and
recovery efforts in \X/dshmgton DC and New York City following the events of
September 11. In addition, we are p]eased that our focused effort on airport

security has resulted in the recent award of two contracts. In

the utilities and communications businesses, we have dep|oyed

our latest Geospatid| Resource /\/\anagement (GRM) system for

numerous customers dﬂd Have iﬂCFQdSZd Sd|€S in both outage dﬂd

workforce management solutions. We are well positioned in

the industries we serve, with a satisfied customer base and 4

oortfolio of next-generation solutions that are being deployed

' N successfully at sites around the world.”

Dr. Roger O. Coup|and, President
Intergraph Public SdFety and Utilities & Communications

Law enforcement, fire, and emergency medical agencies around the
world depend on systems from Intergraph Public Safety.

Intergraph Utilities & Communications provides integrated geospatial
information systems that are used by electric, gas, pipeline,
water/wastewater, and communications companies to manage their
assefs and resourees.




ntergraoh Public Safety and Ultilities & Communications pro-
vides solutions for pubhc safety agencies, airports, roadside

assistance providers, utilities, and communications businesses
around the world.

Public Safety

The need for a comprehensive information infrastructure in

the pubiic saFety marketp\ace continues to increase. Historica“y,
the use of information services focused on the Command and
Control Center and the support of dispatching operations.
Today, wireless infrastructures supporting greater bandwidths,
together with lower-cost mobile computing devices, enable
the rapid delivery of public safety information to ever-increasing
distances from the central site.

Intergraph Public Safety systems in \X/ashington DC/
Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania, and Newark, New
Jerse\/, piayed l<e\/ support roles in responding to the events

of September 11. These events are reinforcing the need to
build the public saFety and security infrastructure. As new tech-
nologies and funding address the challenges of deterrence and
detection, we will see a growing awareness of the need to
enhance these systems by incorporating them with integrated
command and control, resource management, and records
management systems.

Providing total integrated solutions

Intergraph Public Safet\/ is recogm'zed as a worldwide market
leader in public salety, providing total solutions that include
softwere, services, and hardware to law enforcement, fire

and emergency medical services, airport security, roadside
assistance, and miJitary base security. 1ntergraph Public Safety
has a |arge customer base that includes installations in 16 coun-
tries and has achieved a level of customer satisfaction that is
unsurpassed in the industry.

Since its inception in 1989, Public Safety has focused its
resources on developing, supporting, and marketing public safe-
ty products. Thirteen years of development in the public safety
arena have produced proven, stable systems for computer aided
dispatch, mobile computing, law enforcement records manage-
ment, and jail management — systems that can be configured

to meet customer needs.

Significant accomplishments in 2001 included extending our
robust mapping and spatia1 analysis capabilities into our records
management system, and adding support for Microsoft’s SQL
Server as a second database option. The new Microsoft SQL
Server product continues our commitment to

Command and Control Systems for computer aided dispatching,
mobile computing, and records management systems.

Utilities & Communications

Intergraph Utilities & Communications provides solutions

to global investor-owned, public, and national companies
dddressing communications, efectric, 34s, p{pefine, and
water/wastewater industries. Around the world, these companies
continue to feel the impact of deregu|ation, mergers and acqui-
sitions, and heightened competition. Our dients are focused
on de‘ivering high—qudhty service while operating at lower cost
and greater efficiency than their competitors. In this environ-
ment, the need to 3ain short-term benefits presents opportuni-
ties for our Geospdtia| Resource Mdndgement (GRM)
solution suite. GRM also can be used to

augment and integrate disjointed information systems.

/ntegratea’ Geospatia/ Resource Management
GRM consists of tight|y integrated engineering and operationdl
applications, including a robust geographic information system

(G\S) based on industry best

practices, full-function computer

“The Knoxville ( Tenn. ) Ultifities T

aided dispdtch, and state-of-the-
art outage management and
mobile workforce management
solutions. A GRM system, for
which we provide both the soft-
ware and the system integration,
will be successful precisely because
the oFFering is a configurab\e,
integrated solution rather than

& collection of technologies,
components, and services. We
have captured g commanding share,

Bosrd selected Intergraph because
KUB needed to find pre-integrat-
ed solutions to reduce the risk,
cost, and time to implement a
centralized dispatch and mobile
solution for both outage and
workforce management. !

Ed Medford
Manager of [T,
Knoxville (Tenn.) Utilities Board

more than 209, of the regulated GIS market, which includes
utilities and communications companies (Daratech, 2001).

The }ndustry-spedﬁc appl)cations and interfaces are HgHy conﬂg-
ursble to meet individual customer requirements. As standard off-
the-shelf products, they can be maintained without excessive

costs, and upgrades are simplified. The bottom line with this
aporoach is a lower total cost of ownership.

Growth and emerging markets

As our customers and the overall utilities and communications
markets strive to incresse relisbility in response to consumer and

regu|dtory demamds, solutions for outage and mobile workforce
management are increasingly in demand. Mobile data solutions

provide flexible, open solutions that capitalize

=] represent an emeiging opportunity. Our

on an dgency’s existing investments in tech-
noiogy and expertise. We also added two
key airport accounts in 2001 — Midway

Alirport (the sister airport to long-time public

safety customer Chicago O'Mare) and
Pittsburgh International Aircort.

Growth and emerging markets

For 2002 and beyond, Intergraph Public
Safety will continue to evolve its product
offerings to achieve its vision — to be the
leading wordwide vendor of real-time

“The Monroe Counfy Law
Enforcement Consortium conducted
an exhaustive search before selecting
Intergraph Public Safety. All of the
agencies involved are pleased that
t%ey will soon be able to utilize cur-
rent technology in their efforts to
recduce crime and at the same time
be fiscally responsible.”

Patrick M. O'Flynn
Undersheriff/ Monroe County (N.Y)

preliminary research indicates that nearly
70% of potential buyers in this market
are evaluating these systems or initiating
pilot systems. We are well positioned
to ieverage this trend.

Our goal is to continue to add value
to geospatia| information techno‘ogy/
providing open, pre-integrated, com-
mexcial off-the-shelf (COTS) solutions
that will help customers benefit from
ongoing technology enhancements.




Z/l Imaging

Creating the future of earth imaging.

ey

P
arth imaging is a broad scientific field
J:’ that deals with obtaining information
==about the surface of the earth from
| images taken by various types of Sensors,
inciuding cameras, radars/ range-iinding idS€(S/
sateiiites, and other devices that can remote|y

|

The United States Navy depends on the KS-153
Reconnaissance camera system to provide the high-res-
olution imagary neaded to make quick decisions.

Tennessee DOT relies on ImageStation 2001 to satisfy
their infense production schedule as well as provide a
high retum on investment.

sense the earth. These remoteiy sensed data
can then be used in a wide variety of robust
appiications for pnotogrdmmetry, remote
sensing, GiS, and more.

Z/I imaging believes that growtn in the

earth imaging industry is driven by

o The temporai nature of image data

° The increasing number of satellite and
aerial sensors

° The growing quantity of available
image data

° The evoiving uses for image data

|ndustry estimates of worldwide revenues
for the earth imaging industry exceed

$3 billion annudiiy, dccording to

Frost & Sullivan.

End-to-end solutions

2/ Imaging, a 60%-owned subsidiary

of the Company, was formed in October
1999 to develop, market, and sell
Windows-based solutions for earth imaging.
Z/ imaging's solutions include aerial cameras,
pnotogrammetric scanners, stereo worksta-
tions, and image management, pRIoOCessINg,
and distribution software. During 2001,
Z/! |maging increased its research and
development efforts in the area of enterprise
solutions that combine the power of
client/server image management &nd distribu-
tion system with a high-performance imaging
engine to quickly process and distribute data
in production and consumer environments.

Committed to

long-term relationships

Z/ Imaging enjoys strong brand recognition
within the earth imaging market. We have

“Throughout 2001, we continued to aggressively consolidate our lesdership position in the
earth imaging market. We introduced a number of significant new enterprise-oriented products
and culminated the vear with the first fully coniigured test flight of our Digital Mapping Camera.
Leveraging our position as ¢ leading provider of production tools, we will expand our product
line into the area of enterprise image data management solutions for CAD and GIS users. This
new product area provides an exciting opportunity for incremental growth.”

Lewis Graham, CEO
Z/! |maging

q giobai customer base that associates us
with relidbility, customer satisfaction, product
quaiity, and performance. Our global sup-
port network enables us to provide saies,
distribution, customer support, and service
to customers around the world. This network
allows Z/1 imdging to continue to build on
our customer-intimate business model.

Technology to drive the industry
The earth imaging industry is experiencing
expiosive growtn in data sources. Yet little
has been done to address the enormous
problem of managing and distributing the
vast quantities of data being collected.

Z/| Imaging, with our new TerraShare™
product iamiiy, is poised to capture the
leadership position in this new market. Using
TerraShare as the foundation of the enter-
prise system, Z/| Imaging orovides a modular
client/server system that manages 8eoimasing
data (images/ digitdi terrain modeis, and
digitized raster graphics) from acquisition

to exploitation to storage to distribution.

TerraShare is ¢ family of products that offers
individual modules for photogrammetric pro-
duction, manasing ortnopnotos on the users
GIS and CAD desktops, and collaborative
production Internet distribution. TerrsShare
addresses the image management and distri-
bution needs of geoimaging producers and
distributors. Because it is iu|i\/ integrdted in
Microsoft Windows Exp|orer, users can
immediately use familiar tools. The modular
approacii makes it easy to customize systems
to meet specific workflows leading to &
more productive environment and positive
return on investment.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995 including, but not limited to, projected revenue and operating income levels, market conditions and their anticipated
impact on the Company and its vertical business segments, expectations regarding future results and cash flows, information
regarding the development, timing of introduction, and performance of new products, and expectations regarding the
Company’s various ongoing litigation proceedings, including those with Intel Corporation (“Intel”). These forward-looking
statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated
in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to,
worldwide economic conditions, increased competition, rapid technological change, unanticipated changes in customer require-
ments, uncertainties with respect to the Company’s installed customer base for discontinued hardware products, inability to
protect the Company’s intellectual property rights, inability to access the technology necessary to compete in the markets served,
inability to complete certain sales and lease transactions as planned, risks associated with doing business internationally, risks
associated with various ongoing litigation proceedings, and other risks detailed in our annual and quarterly filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Summary

The following summarized financial data sets forth the results of operations of the Company for each year in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2001. The complete consolidated financial statements of the Company, including footnote disclo-
sures, are presented on pages 33 to 59 of this Annual Report.

2001 2000 1999

(In millions except per share amounts)
Revenues $532 $690 $915
Cost of revenues 299 438 625
Gross profit 233 252 290
Operating expenses ' 225 267 342
Reorganization charges — 9 15
Income (loss) from operations 8 (24) 67)
Gains on sales of assets 11 50 13
Arbitration settlement — _ ®
Interest expense (2) : @ ©)
Other income (expense), net 12 (3) 4
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

income taxes and minority interest 29 19 (72)
Income tax expense 9) ) ©)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

minority interest 20 13 78)
Minority interest — 3) )
Income (loss) from continuing operations 20 10 (79)
Discontinued operation (VeriBest) — — 7
Net income (loss) $ 20 $ 10 $(72)
Income (loss) per share, basic:

From continuing operations $ .40 $.20 $(1.60)

Net income (loss) per share 40 20 (1.46)
Income (loss) per share, diluted:

From continuing operations 39 20 (1.60)

Net income (loss) per share 39 20 (1.46)




In 2001, the Company had net income of $19.9 million on revenues of $532.1 million compared to net income of $10.1 million
on revenues of $690.5 million in 2000 and a net loss of $71.6 million on revenues of §914.9 million in 1999. Operating income
in 2001 was $8.1 million compared to operating losses of $23.6 million and $67.4 million in 2000 and 1999, respectively. This
return to profitability resulted from the Company’s reorganization in 2000 into five core business segments and its exit from the
hardware business. The improvement in operating income resuited primarily from the continuing decline in the Company's
operating expenses and higher gross margins due to the increasing software content in its product mix.

In 2000, the Company focused on organizing into five business segments, aligned according to markets in which Intergraph
believes it is a leader. The Company substantially completed the U.S. portion of this process in the third quarter of 2000, and in
the fourth quarter, began efforts to align its international operations with the new vertical businesses and bring the cost of its
international operations in line with current revenue levels. As part of this process, the Company converted its Singapore
subsidiary and related territories into a distributorship via a sale transaction and began to reorganize its European and Asia
Pacific operations to align them with the new vertical business structure (see “Reorganization Charges”). In 2001, the
Company continued to convert several other international subsidiaries into distributorships, primarily in the Middle East and
Asia. The international portion of the Company’s verticalization process was completed in 2001, though some of the subsidiary
sales transactions are expected to be completed in 2002.

The Company completed its exit of the hardware development and design business in third quarter 2000 with the sales of its
Intense3D graphics accelerator division and its high-end workstation and server business (see Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements). The Company continues to sell hardware products from other vendors through its business segments and
performs hardware maintenance services for its installed customer base. The Intergraph Government Solutions (“IGS”) and Z/1
Imaging Corporation (“Z/1 Imaging”) business segments continue to develop and assemble specialized hardware products.

Revenues and operating results in 1999 were negatively impacted by increasingly weak demand for the Company’s hardware
product offerings related to the dispute with Intel (see “Litigation and Other Risks and Uncertainties”). As a result, in third
quarter 1999, the Company was forced to exit the personal computer (“PC”) and generic server businesses and narrow the
focus of its Intergraph Computer Systems (“ICS”) business segment to workstations, specialty servers, digital video products,
and 3D graphics cards. The Company also implemented several cost-cutting measures, primarily in the form of direct reduc-
tions in workforce, during 1999 in an effort to align its expenses with the lower revenue levels being generated (see
“Reorganization Charges”).

In fourth quarter 1999, the Company sold its VeriBest business segment. Accordingly, the Company’s consolidated statement of
operations reflect VeriBest's business as a discontinued operation for 1999. As such, except where noted otherwise, the follow-
ing discussion of the Company’s results of operations addresses only results of continuing operations. VeriBest's results of
operations are discussed separately in “Discontinued Operation.”

Orders

Systems and services orders for 2001 were $369.8 million, down 36% from the prior year after declining by 18% in 2000 and
20% in 1999. The decline in orders in 2001 was due primarily to the Company's exit of the hardware business in 2000 and to
the sale of its Middle East operations in 2001. In 2000, orders for the Company's hardware products declined as the result of
the Company's exit from this market; however, the hardware market decline was partially offset by a significant improvement in
orders of the Company’s Intergraph Public Safety (“IPS") business segment. IPS’ orders increased by 42% from the 1999 level
as the result of several large orders received in third quarter 2000. Orders in 1999 included $12.3 million in orders of the
Company's discontinued VeriBest operation. In 1999, order volumes declined worldwide, primarily in the Company’s hardware
business as demand continued to weaken from the prior year.

U.S. systems and services orders, including federal government orders, totaled $217 million for 2001, down 27% from the prior
year. Excluding the impact of the VeriBest sale, U.S. orders declined by 9% in 2000 and by 29% in 1999. In 2001, U.S. orders
continued to decline due to the exit from the hardware business. In 2000, the negative impact of the hardware exit on orders
was partially offset by increased orders in the Company’s IPS and Z/1 Imaging business segments. 2000 was the first full year of
operations for Z/I Imaging. In 1999, demand for the Company’s hardware product offerings weakened significantly, account-
ing for the majority of the decline in U.S. orders for the year. International orders for 2001 totaled $152.8 million, down 46%
from the prior year after declines of 23% and 9% in 2000 and 1999, respectively. The decline in 1999 excludes the impact of the
Company’s former VeriBest business segment. The Company’s most significant declines in orders have occurred in its
European and Asian regions. European orders totaled $96.5 million in 2001, down 25% from the prior year level, after declin-
ing by 43% in 2000 and 7% in 1999. Strengthening of the U.S. dollar resulted in successive declines in reported European order
levels of approximately 4%, 8%, and 3% in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The remaining decline in 2001 and 2000 for the




European region was related to the Company’s exit of the hardware business and to the region’s focus on verticalization of the
organization in fourth quarter 2000. Asia Pacific orders totaled $33.2 million in 2001, down 52% from the 2000 level after
declines of 14% in 2000 and 4% in 1999. The 2001 and 2000 declines can be attributed primarily to the hardware exit and to
reductions from currency fluctuations in the region of 9% and 2%, respectively. 2001 international orders declined further
compared to 2000 due to strong 2000 orders in Canada and the Middle East as a result of several large orders received by IPS
Canada in the first quarter 2000 and strong fourth quarter 2000 services orders in the Middle East region. In 1999, weakening
of the dollar against Asian currencies improved reported order levels in that region by approximately 3%; however, this positive
impact was more than offset by weakened demand for the Company’s hardware products.

Revenues

Total revenues from continuing operations for 2001 were §532.1 million, down 23% from the prior year level after declining by
25% and 9% in 2000 and 1999, respectively, all due primarily to the Company’s exit from the hardware business.

In third quarter 2000, the Company substantially completed the organization of its operations into five business segments which
provide software, systems integration, and services. Revenues in 2001 and 2000 for each of these segments, as well as a
comparative presentation of 2000 and 1999 revenues based on the Company’s previous segmentation policy, are presented in
Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Systems. Systems revenue from continuing operations was $301.5 mitlion in 2001, down 29% from the previous year after
declining by 32% in 2000 and 13% in 1999. Factors cited previously as contributing to the decline in orders have adversely
affected systems revenues over the three-year period, and competitive conditions resulting in declining sales prices continue to
adversely affect the Company’s systems revenues. The significant revenue declines in 2001 and 2000 can also be attributed to
continuing order weakness in the Company’s vertical software businesses.

Systems revenues have declined in all geographic markets served by the Company due primarily to the factors noted above.

U.S. systems sales from continuing operations, including sales to the federal government, totaled $183.3 million in 2001, down
19% from the prior year level, after decreasing by 31% in 2000 and 14% in 1999. The revenue declines in 2000 and 1999 were
primarily attributable to declining hardware revenues as well as to successive declines in sales of the Company’s IGS business
segment. 1GS revenues have been negatively impacted by the exit from the hardware business, and in fourth quarter 2000,
revenues were further reduced as the result of delayed funding on several large government contracts. The funding was
received on the contracts in first quarter 2001. International systems sales totaled $118.2 million in 2001, down 41% from the
prior year level after declines of 32% in 2000 and 11% in 1999. Strengthening of the U.S. dollar with respect to the currencies of
the Company’s international markets, primarily Europe, reduced the Company’s international systems revenues by 2%, 4%, and
1%, respectively, in 2001, 2000, and 1999. European sales were down 28% in 2001, after declines of 43% and 9% in 2000 and
1999, respectively. Asia Pacific systems sales were down 62%, after declines of 17% and 8% in 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Systems revenues for Canada and Latin America declined by 32% in 2001, while systems revenues for the Middle East region
declined by 71% in 2001. The decrease in the Middle East revenues is due primarily to the exit of the hardware business and
the conversion of subsidiaries into distributorships in 2001.

Hardware revenues in 2001 totaled approximately $60.7 million, down 59% from the prior year level, after declining by 50%
and 27%, respectively, in 2000 and 1999. The Company exited the hardware business in third quarter 2000.

Total revenue from the U.S. government was approximately $143 million in 2001, $132 million in 2000, and $149 million in
1999, representing 27%, 19%, and 16% of total revenue in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. During the three-year period
ended December 31, 2001, U.S. government orders and revenues have been characterized by weakened demand for the
Company’s hardware product offerings, due partially to increasing price competition within the industry, and in 2000, to the
Company’s exit from this market. Federal government sales in 2000 were additionally impacted by delayed funding on several
large contracts. The Company sells to the U.S. government under long-term contractual arrangements, primarily indefinite
delivery, indefinite quantity and cost-based contracts, and through sales of commercial products not covered by long-term
contracts. Approximately 69% of the Company’s 2001 federal government revenues were earned under long-term contracts.
The Company believes its relationship with the federal government to be good. While it is fully anticipated that these contracts
will remain in effect through their expiration, the contracts are subject to termination at the election of the government. Any
loss of a significant government contract would have an adverse impact on the results of operations of the Company.




Maintenance. Maintenance revenue from continuing operations declined by 22% in 2001, after declines of 14% and 8% in
2000 and 1999, respectively. The Company’s hardware maintenance business has declined as a result of the trend in the indus-
try toward lower-priced products and longer warranty periods, the Company's exit from the hardware business, and the sale of
certain non-core products to Bentley Systems, Inc. (“BSI”).

Services. Services revenue from continuing operations, consisting primarily of revenues from Company-provided implemen-
tation services and consulting, increased by 2% in 2001, after increasing by 1% and 17% in 2000 and 1999, respectively. The
increase in 1999 was due primarily to revenues earned by the Company’s IPS business segment. Services are becoming increas-
ingly significant to the Company’s business, representing 20% of total revenue for 2001, compared to 15% and 11% in 2000 and
1999, respectively. The Company is endeavoring to grow its services business; however, revenues from these services typically
fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter and produce lower gross margins than systems or maintenance revenues.

Gross Margin

The Company's total gross margin percentage on revenues from continuing operations was 44% in 2001, compared to 37% in
2000 and 32% in 1999.

Margin on systems revenues from continuing operations was 49% in 2001, increasing from 38% in 2000 and 30% in 1999. This
upward trend in the Company’s systems gross margin is primarily the result of increased software content in the product mix.
Also, the Company’s systems margins continue to be negatively impacted by the strengthening of the U.S. dollar in its interna-
tional markets, primarily Europe. In 2000, 2 $4.5 million inventory write-down resulted from the shutdown of the Company’s
hardware business. Systems margins in 2000 were further reduced by costs incurred in fourth quarter 2000 on IGS contracts
awaiting funding from the U.S. government; however, these negative impacts were more than offset by increasing software
content in the product mix as the Company's hardware revenues continued to decline. In 1999, margins were negatively
impacted by a §7 million inventory write-off incurred in connection with the Company’s decision to exit the PC and generic
server business. This was offset by increased software content in the product mix and a decline in unfavorable manufacturing
variances as the result of the outsourcing of hardware product manufacturing to SCI.

In general, the Company's systems margin may be improved by higher software content in the product mix, a weaker dollar in
international markets, and a higher mix of international systems sales to total systems sales when the dollar is weaker in inter-
national markets. Systems margins may be lowered by price competition, a higher hardware content in the product mix,
stronger U.S. dollar in international markets, and a higher mix of federal government sales, which generally produce lower
margins than commercial sales. While unable to predict the effects that many of these factors may have on its systems margin,
the Company expects to maintain the improvements resulting from the Company’s exit of the hardware business.

Margin on maintenance revenues from continuing operations was 47% in 2001, 45% in 2000, and 46% in 1999. Although
maintenance revenues have declined over the past three years, the Company has been able to maintain maintenance margin
levels by increasing the software content of maintenance revenue and reducing the associated cost of revenues, due in part to
improved inventory management resulting in less inventory obsolescence costs. The Company monitors its maintenance costs
closely and has taken measures, including reductions in headcount, to align these costs with the declining levels of revenue.

Margin on services revenues from continuing operations was 25% in 2001, improving from 18% and 16% in 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Margins in 2001 were positively impacted by a slight increase in revenue, coupled with a larger decrease in costs.
Margins in 2000 were positively impacted by several large high-margin consulting contracts acquired by IGS. Services
revenues in 1999 increased by 17% from the 1998 level without a proportional increase in costs. Significant fluctuations in
services revenues and margins from period to period are not unusual as the costs incurred on certain types of service contracts
may not coincide with the recognition of revenue. For contracts other than those accounted for under the percentage-of-
completion method, costs are expensed as incurred, with revenues recognized either at the end of the performance period or
based on milestones specified in the contract.

In third quarter 2000, the Company exited the hardware business but continues to service its installed hardware base under
warranty and maintenance contractual obligations. All hardware currently sold by the Company is purchased from third-party
vendors. Any unanticipated change in technology or an inability of the Company to accurately forecast its inventory needs
could significantly and adversely affect gross margins and reported results of operations.




Operating Expenses (exclusive of reorganization charges)

Operating expenses for continuing operations declined by 16% in 2001, 22% in 2000, and 14% in 1999. In response to the level
of its previous operating losses, the Company took various actions, including employee terminations and the closure and sale of
certain unprofitable and non-core business operations, which reduced the number of its employees by approximately 35%
during the three-year period ended December 31, 2001.

Product development expense declined by 4% in 2001, after declines of 10% and 18% in the two preceding years. The 2001
decrease is mainly the result of the exit from the hardware business and a decline in software development costs. [n 2000, an
increase in software development expense due to net realizable value concerns partially offset the positive impact of the
headcount decline. 1999 expenses were lowered due to additional software development projects whose cost qualified for
capitalization, primarily related to the Company’s shipbuilding software development efforts.

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurred after the technological feasibility of new software products has been established
and amortizes those costs against the revenues later generated by those products. Though the Company regularly reviews its
capitalized development costs to ensure recognition of any decline in value, it is possible that, for any given product, revenues
will not materialize in amounts anticipated due to industry conditions that include intense price and performance competition,
or that product lives will be reduced due to shorter product cycles. Should these events occur, the carrying amount of capital-
ized development costs would be reduced, producing adverse effects on the Company’s systems margin and results of
operations (see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Sales and marketing expense declined 19% in 2001, after decreasing by 30% in 2000 and 22% in 1999. Expenses in al! three
years were reduced by the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against international currencies. Additional headcount reductions
throughout 2001, 2000, and 1999 have resulted in significant expense declines worldwide. The Company’s sales and marketing
expenses are inherently activity-based and can be expected to fluctuate with activity levels.

General and administrative expense declined by 19% in 2001 after decreasing by 15% in 2000 and increasing by 8% in 1999.
Expenses decreased in 2001 due primarily to reductions in corporate and international headcount and worldwide bad debt
expenses. Legal expenses in 2001 were flat with those in 2000; however, the Company expects that its legal expenses will fluctu-
ate with the level of activity associated with the Intel litigation. The decline in 2000 was due primarily to a decline in legal fees
as the result of reduced activity related to the Intel litigation and a decline in compensation expenses as a result of reduced
headcount. The expense increase in 1999 resulted from increased bad debt expenses in the U.S. and continued growth in the
Company’s legal fees, partially offset by across-the-board declines in all other expense categories.

Product Development

The Company currently has many ongoing projects relating to development of new products. These projects include software
for engineering information management, intelligent piping and instrumentation diagrams, 3D visualization, enterprise infor-
mation access and reports, and 2D CAD; and new technology for the earth-imaging industry which includes new digital
products for photogrammetry, airborne reconnaissance, aerial mapping, and image distribution. For these projects, the
Company incurred research and development expenditures of $11.3 million, $6.1 million, and $515,000 for the periods ended
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. These expenses are included in the consolidated statements of operations as a
component of “Product development.” Capitalized research and development expenses totaling approximately $9.8 million and
$9.7 million are included as 2 component of “Capitalized software development costs” in the consolidated balance sheets at
December 31, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

Reorganization Charges

During the three years ended December 31, 2001, the Company implemented various reorganization actions in an effort to
align costs with the level of revenues generated.

In 2001, European severance liabilities totaling approximately $400,000 were reversed as the Company’s new business
segments, in response to unanticipated attrition, hired or are rehiring some of the employees whose positions had been elimi-
nated by the 2000 reorganization plan. In addition, a few of the terminated employees left the Company voluntarily, which also
contributed to the reduction of the Company’s severance requirements. This expense reversal is reflected in “Reorganization
charges (credit)” in the 2001 consolidated statement of operations. Cash outlays in 2001 for severance that related to the 2000
and prior reorganization plans approximated $3.6 million. At December 31, 2001, the Company had no accrued liability
related to the prior years’ restructuring efforts.




In the first quarter of 2000, the Company announced its intention to exit the hardware business. The Company completed this
exit in the third quarter of 2000 with the sales of its Intense3D graphics accelerator division and its high-end workstation and
server business (see Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Upon completion of these transactions, the
Company incurred a charge to operations of approximately $3.5 million, including amounts reflected in “Cost of revenues -
Systems” and “Cost of revenues - Maintenance” of $4.5 million and $200,000, respectively. The amounts reflected in cost of
revenues represent the costs of inventory write-offs incurred as a result of the closure. With the exception of these costs, all
expenses associated with the closure are reflected in “Reorganization charges (credit)” in the 2000 consolidated statement of
operations. Severance costs associated with the closure totaled approximately $1.7 million. Approximately 50 positions were
eliminated worldwide, primarily in the sales and marketing area, with the majority of the related expense incurred in Europe.
The remaining exit costs consisted primarily of related fixed asset write-offs of $1.5 million and accruals for lease cancellations
and idle building space.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company began efforts to align its international operations with its new vertical business
segments and bring the cost of those operations in line with the current level of revenue. As part of these efforts, the Company
eliminated approximately 145 positions worldwide in its sales and marketing, general and administrative, and customer service
and support areas, with the majority of the related expense incurred in Europe and Asia. The cost of the reorganization totaled
approximately $5.3 million, primarily for employee severance pay and related expenses. The Company estimates that this
reduction in force will result in annual savings of approximately $10 million.

Cash outlays in 2000 for severance that related to the Company’s restructuring efforts were §7.3 million. Additionally, during
third and fourth quarter 2000, European severance liabilities totaling approximately $600,000 were reversed as some of the
employees affected by the 1999 actions left the Company voluntarily. This expense reversal is reflected in “Reorganization
charges (credit)” in the 2000 consolidated statement of operations. At December 31, 2000, the total remaining accrued liability
for severance relating to the 2000 reductions in force was approximately $4 million. In 2001, $3.6 miltion was paid and
$400,000 was reversed.

In the second quarter of 1999, most of the Company’s ICS subsidiaries in Europe were closed in response to continued operat-
ing losses in its ICS business segment. The associated cost of $§2.5 million, primarily for employee severance pay, is included in
“Reorganization charges (credit)" in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations. Approximately 46 European positions
were eliminated, all in the sales and marketing area. The Company estimates that this resizing has resulted in annual savings
of approximately $3 million.

In the third quarter of 1999, the Company took further actions to reduce expenses in its unprofitable business segments and
restructure the Company to support the vertical markets in which it operates. These actions included elimination of approxi-
mately 400 positions worldwide, completion of the worldwide vertical market alignment of the sales force, and narrowing of the
focus of the Company’s ICS business segment to high-end workstations, specialty servers, digital video products, and 3D graph-
ics cards. As a result of these actions, the Company recorded a charge to operations of $20.1 million, of which §7 million is
included as a component of “Cost of revenues - Systems” in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations. This §7 million
charge represents the cost of inventory write-offs incurred as a result of ICS’ exit from the PC and generic server business.
Severance costs associated with the third quarter of 1999 reorganization totaled approximately $8.7 million, of which $7.8
million is included in “Reorganization charges (credit)” in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations. The remaining
severance costs related to headcount reductions in the Company’s VeriBest business segment and, accordingly, they are reflected
in “Loss from discontinued operation, net of income taxes” in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations. The Company
estimates that the annual savings resulting from this reduction in force approximated $22 million. The remainder of the third
quarter 1999 reorganization charge consisted of write-offs of capitalized business system software no longer required as a result
of verticalization of the Company’s business segments and resulting decentralization of portions of the corporate financial and
administrative functions.

Cash outlays in 1999 for severance that related to the Company’s restructuring actions approximated $9.7 million. At December
31,1999, the Company had a liability of approximately $5 million related to the 1999 reductions in force, all of which was paid
or reversed in 2000.

Nom-operating Income and Expense

Interest expense for continuing operations was $1.8 million in 2001, $4 million in 2000, and $5.7 million in 1999. The
Company’s average outstanding debt has declined due primarily to repayment of borrowings utilizing existing cash balances
and the proceeds from sales of various non-core businesses and assets. See Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for details of the Company's current financing arrangements.
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“Other income (expense), net” in the consolidated statements of operations consists primarily of interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses, and other miscellaneous items of non-operating income and expense. In 2001, this amount
included a $3.8 million payment received from Micrografx for a convertible debenture held by the Company, $1.7 million for a
Mentor Graphics warrant, interest income of $7.4 million (resulting primarily from the BSI note and the Company's higher
level of cash), and a net foreign exchange loss of $1.5 million. See “Impact of Currency Fluctuations and Currency Risk
Management” and Notes 5 and 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Taxes

The Company earned pretax income before minority interest of $28.9 million in 2001, compared to $19.2 million in 2000 and to
a pretax loss of $72.5 million in 1999. Income tax expense in each of these years resulted primarily from taxes on individually
profitable majority-owned subsidiaries, including the Company’s 60% ownership interest in Z/1 Imaging in 2001, 2000, and
1999. There was no material income tax expense or benefit related to the Company’s discontinued VeriBest operation in 1999.

Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contains a reconciliation of statutory income tax expense or benefit to
actual income tax expense for each year in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, and includes further details of the
Company’s tax position, including net operating income (loss), and tax credit carryforwards.

Discontinued Operation

On October 31, 1999, the Company sold its VeriBest, Inc. business segment to Mentor Graphics Corporation, a global provider of
electronic hardware and software design solutions and consulting services, for approximately $11 miltion, primarily in the
form of cash received at closing. The resulting gain on this transaction of $14.4 million is reflected in “Gain on sale of discon-
tinued operation, net of income taxes” in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations and in “Gains on sales of assets” in the
1999 consolidated statement of cash flows.

The VeriBest business segment served the electronic design automation market, providing software design tools, design
processes, and consulting services for developers of electronic systems.

For the period in 1999 prior to its sale, VeriBest incurred an operating loss of §7.3 million on revenues from unaffiliated
customers of $23.7 million. VeriBest’s operating loss for 1999 included reorganization charges of $900,000 incurred for
employee terminations as part of various company-wide restructurings (see “Reorganization Charges”).

Summarized financial information for the VeriBest business segment for 1999 is presented in Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Results by Business Segment

The year 2000 was a transitional year for the Company during which much effort was focused on organizing the Company into
five business segments. In third quarter 2000, the Company substantially completed the U.S. portion of this process, and the
international portion was completed during the first quarter of 2001. The following discussion provides a comparative analysis
of results of operations based on the Company’s current business structure for 2001 and 2000, as well as a discussion of the
prior business structure for 2000 and 1999. The Company is unable to restate current year data into the previous segment
structure and 1999 data into the current segment structure to provide comparability, as this would be impracticable, and would
involve excessive cost and require extensive estimations. One segment, Z/1 Imaging, did not change as a result of the new
structure. Information reported for previous years is comparable to the new presentation, though 1999 includes only three
months of activity for Z/1 Imaging as the subsidiary was formed on October 1,1999. In the Company’s new reporting structure,
its 2000 loss from operations is attributed primarily to its ICS business segment, whose operations ceased in fourth quarter
2000, and to the Corporate operation, mainly due to general corporate expenses. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further explanation and details of the Company’s segment reporting, including a presentation of the Company's
new vertical operating structure for 2000 and beyond.

Current Segment Structure

IGS. 1GS earned operating income of §10 million on revenues of $134.1 million, compared to 2000 operating income of $13.8
million on revenues of $159.5 million. IGS’ systems revenues were adversely impacted by weakened demand for the Company's
hardware product offerings due to the Company’s exit from the hardware business in the third quarter of 2000. Additionally, in
fourth quarter 2000, its revenues declined as the result of delayed funding on several large government contracts which were
funded in first quarter 2001. In 2001, maintenance revenues declined due to the sale of certain non-core products to BSI. The




segment’s total gross margin decreased from 28% in 2000 to 25% in 2001 due to a decline in hardware and maintenance
business as noted above. The decline in revenue is partially offset by a 13% decline in cost of revenues associated with the
revenue reduction. Operating expenses declined 22% from reductions in headcount and bad debt expenses.

IMGS. Intergraph Mapping and GIS Solutions (“IMGS”) earned operating income of $5.1 million on revenues of $136.8
million, compared to 2000 operating income of $4.5 million on revenues of $160.9 million. IMGS’ systems revenues were
adversely impacted by weakened demand for the Company's hardware product offerings due to the Company’s exit from the
hardware business in the third quarter of 2000. Maintenance revenues declined due to the sale of certain non-core products to
BSI. Services revenue increased 27% to partially offset these declines. The segment’s total gross margin was approximately
42% in 2001 compared to approximately 36% in 2000. The systems revenue decline was more than offset by a reduction in
systems cost of revenues. In addition, total gross margin increased due to an increase in the services margin. Operating
expenses were flat with the 2000 level.

PP&O. Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore (“PP&0”) earned operating income of $6.8 million and $9.9 million in 2001
and 2000, respectively, on revenues of $116.5 million and $123.7 million. The 6% decline in revenue is due to a reduction in
hardware sales and associated maintenance revenue due to the Company’s exit from the hardware business in the third quarter
of 2000, and the reduction of maintenance revenues resulting from the sale of certain non-core products to BSI. The segment’s
total gross margin improved from 52% in 2000 to 61% in 2001 as a result of a reduction of sales of lower-margin products.
Operating expenses for the segment increased 20%, mainly in research and development. To better reflect the industries it
serves, the division changed its name from Intergraph Process & Building Solutions to Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore in
January 2002

IPS. 1PS earned operating income of $5.3 million and $1.4 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively, on revenues of $115.8
million and $127.9 million. The improvement in IPS' 2001 results of operations was due primarily to an increase in gross
margin from 38% in 2000 to 43% in 2001, largely due to a higher software content in revenues and improved margins on
maintenance. This margin improvement was coupled with a 4% decrease in operating expenses. IPS’ general and administra-
tive expenses have decreased by 14% from the 2000 level, as 2000 included legal expenses incurred in Australia for an inquiry
related to a large contract award. It is unknown at present whether this inquiry will result in a legal proceeding of any signifi-
cance with respect to the IPS business segment and the Company.

Z/I Imaging. 1n 2001, Z/1 Imaging earned operating income of $4.5 million on revenues of $38.6 million, after earning
operating income of $9.2 million on revenues of §43.4 million in 2000. 2000 was the segment’s first full calendar year of opera-
tions since its inception October 1, 1999. The decrease in revenue in 2001 resulted from higher than expected systems revenues
in 2000 due to strong sales of photogrammetric processing systems. Total gross margin for 2001 and 2000 approximated 57%,
reflecting high margins earned on software and photogrammetric systems. Z/1 Imaging’s operating expenses for 2001 were
approximately 12% above the 2000 level due to increased staffing as a result of Z/1 Imaging’s continued infrastructure building.

ICS. In third quarter 2000, ICS exited the development, design, and sale of hardware products and closed its operations.
Before the exit, ICS incurred operating losses of $17.1 million on revenues of $116.4 million. Effective with the shutdown of
ICS, the Company’s hardware maintenance and network services operations were combined with the IGS business segment.
See the ICS discussion below for comparative data for 2000 and 1999.

Mid World. The Company’s Middle East operations (“Mid World”) incurred operating losses of $3.3 million and $1.4
million in 2001 and 2000, respectively, on revenues of $11.8 million and $21.9 million. Revenues declined in 2001 as Mid World
primarily focused on selling the existing business rather than on developing new business. Portions of Mid World were sold in
April 2001 and July 2001. The sale of the remaining portion of the Mid World operations, Intergraph Middle East, Ltd.
(“IMEL"), is expected to close during the first quarter of 2002. Upon completion of this sale, the Company will no longer have
subsidiaries in the region and will do business solely through distributors. For 2001 and 2000 comparative data, Mid World is
included as a segment on a temporary basis (see Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Corporate. TFor 2001 and 2000 comparative data, Corporate includes revenues and associated costs for Teranetix (a provider
of computing support and hardware integration services) and international hardware maintenance. Corporate incurred
operating losses of $20.1 million and $35.4 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively, on revenues of $22 million and $46.7 million.
The operating losses are mainly due to general corporate expenses of $22.6 million in 2001 and $35.7 million in 2000. For
2001, operating expenses declined by 37% as a result of the Company’s ongoing efforts to reduce its corporate overhead, prima-
rily through reductions in headcount. Approximately $2.5 million of the fourth quarter 2000 reorganization charges related to
terminations of administrative personnel, primarily in Europe.
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Previous Segment Straciure

ICS. 1CS incurred operating losses of $18.9 million and $44.8 million in 2000 and 1999, respectively, on revenues of $155
million and $332.1 million. 1CS’ 1999 results of operations were significantly adversely impacted by factors associated with the
Company’s dispute with Intel, the effects of which included lost momentum, lost revenue and margin, and increased operating
expenses, primarily for marketing and public relations. (See “Litigation and Other Risks and Uncertainties” for a complete
discussion of the Company’s dispute with Intel and its effects on the operations of ICS and the Company,) In response to its
continued operating losses, in third quarter 1999, ICS exited the PC and generic server business and narrowed its focus to
workstations, specialty servers, digital video products and 3D graphics cards. In third quarter 2000, ICS exited the development
and design of hardware products and closed its operations. ICS’ revenue declines over the two-year period ended December 31,
2000, resulted primarily from the aforementioned factors associated with the Intel dispute and from its closure in 2000. 1CS'
total gross margin in 2000 was approximately 9% compared to approximately 11% in 1999. In 2000, a $4.5 million inventory
write-down was recorded in connection with the shutdown of ICS’ hardware development business. 2000 margins were also
negatively impacted by significant discounting on sales of ICS’ remaining inventory, primarily in the fourth quarter. In 1999,
margins improved as a result of outsourcing to SC, but were offset by a $7 million inventory write-off incurred as the result of
the exit from the PC and generic server business. ICS’ operating loss improvement in 2000 was due primarily to successive
operating expense declines of 60% resulting from headcount reductions achieved over the two-year period prior to its shutdown
in 2000. Effective with the shutdown of ICS, the Company’s hardware maintenance and network services operations were
combined with the IGS business segment.

IPS. 1PS earned operating income of $5.3 million and $10.8 million, in 2000 and 1999, respectively, on revenues of $90.6
million and $96.3 million. As a general rule, the IPS business is characterized by large orders that are difficult to forecast and
cause orders to fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter. In 2000, IPS’ systems and services orders increased by 42%;
however, a correlating revenue increase did not materialize in 2000 as most of these orders were received late in the third
quarter. In 2000, improvements in IPS’ systems and maintenance margins from the 1999 level were offset by a 23% increase in
operating expenses. In anticipation of increasing orders, the Utilities division of IPS increased its headcount by approximately
7% from the 1999 level, primarily in the product development and sales and marketing areas. Additionally, IPS’ 2000 general
and administrative expenses increased by 20% from the 1999 level due to legal expenses incurred in Australia for an inquiry
related to a large contract award. It is unknown at present whether this inquiry will result in a legal proceeding of any signifi-
cance with respect to the IPS business segment and the Company.

Inmtergrapl Software. The Software business earned operating income of $8.6 million and $7.3 million in 2000 and 1999,
respectively, on revenues of $338.6 miltion and $469.4 million. The revenue decline in 2000 was due primarily to declining
systems revenues, partially the result of weakened demand for the Company’s hardware products, and to the continued
downward trend in maintenance revenues. The segment's total margin increased from approximately 37% in 1999 to 42% in
2000, primarily due to increased software content in the product mix. Though total gross margin increased in 2000, the 28%
decline in revenues resulted in a significant reduction in operating income for the Software segment; however, the impact of the
revenue decline was more than offset by declines in the segment's sales and marketing and general and administrative expenses
0f 27% and 11%, respectively, as the result of the Company’s reorganization efforts. Segment information formerly reported in
Intergraph Software is now reported in IGS, IMGS, PP&0, and IPS (see Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

IGS. 1n 2000, IGS earned operating income of $3.6 million on revenues of §144 million, compared to a 1999 operating income
of $12.4 million on revenues of §159.8 million. IGS’ revenues were adversely impacted by weakened demand for the Company’s
hardware product offerings in both years, and in fourth quarter 2000, its revenues were further reduced as the result of delayed
funding on several large government contracts which were funded in first quarter 2001. The segment's total gross margin
stabilized at approximately 24% for 2000 and 1999. In 2000, IGS’ operating expenses increased by 21%, primarily due to
expenses incurred in connection with the verticalization of the business, including the implementation of a new accounting
system and an increase in bad debt expenses from the 1999 level.

Z/I Imaging. In 2000, Z/1 Imaging earned operating income of $9.2 million on revenues of $43.4 million, after earning
operating income of $1.9 million on revenues of $9.8 million in fourth quarter 1999. 2000 was the segment’s first full calendar
year of operations since its inception October 1, 1999. Z/1 Imaging’s systems revenues in 2000 were higher than expected due to
strong sales of photogrammetric processing systems. Total gross margin for 2000 and fourth quarter 1999 approximated 57%,
reflecting high margins earned on software and photogrammetric systems. Z/1 Imaging's operating expenses increased
approximately 6% above the fourth quarter 1999 annualized level due to additional personnel added throughout the year.

Corporate Expenses. General corporate expenses declined by 41% in 2000 from the 1999 level. These variances are
attributed primarily to fluctuations in the Company’s legal fees. Expenses in 2000 were positively impacted by the Company's
ongoing efforts to reduce its corporate overhead, primarily through reductions in headcount. Approximately $2.5 miltion of the
fourth quarter 2000 reorganization charges related to terminations of administrative personnel, primarily in Europe.




Qutlook for 2002

The Company expects that the markets in which it competes will continue to be characterized by intense competition, rapidly
changing technologies, and shorter product cycles. Further improvement in the Company's operating results will depend on
further market penetration by accurately anticipating customer requirements and technological trends, and rapidly and
continuously developing and delivering new products that are competitively priced, offer enhanced performance, and meet
customers’ requirements for standardization and interoperability. Better operating results will also depend on worldwide
economic improvement and the Company's ability to successfully implement its strategic direction, which includes the opera-
tion and growth of independent business segments. See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

The Company continues to pursue additional real estate sales and facilities consolidation. If completed as planned, these sales
may provide substantial cash to the Company in 2002.

To increase profitability, the Company must achieve revenue growth and successfully complete its efforts to align operating
expenses with the projected level of revenue. [n addition, the Company continues to face legal expenses of unknown duration
and amount due to its dispute with Intel.

Litigation and Gther Risks and Uncertainties

The Company continues its litigation with Intel, and its business is subject to certain other risks and uncertainties, including
those described below.

Intel Litigation. The Company filed a legal action on November 17, 1997, in U.S. District Court for the Northern District of
Alabama, Northeastern Division (the “Alabama Court”), charging Intel with unlawful anti-competitive business practices.
Intergraph alleges that Intel attempted to coerce the Company into relinquishing certain computer hardware patents to Intel
through a series of wrongful acts, including interference with business and contractual relations, interference with technical
assistance from third-party vendors, breach of contract, negligence, and fraud based upon Intel's failure to promptly notify the
Company of defects in Intel's products and timely correction of such defects, and further alleging that Intel infringed upon the
Company's patents. The Company's patents (the “Clipper Patents”) define the architecture of the cache memory of
Intergraph’s Clipper microprocessor. The Company believes this architecture is at the core of Intel’s Pentium line of micro-
processors and systems. Intel’s Pentium 4 processor was not commercially available at the time of the filing of the lawsuit;
however, the Company has reason to believe that Intel's Pentium 4 processor infringes the Company’s Clipper patents. On
December 3, 1997, the Company amended its complaint to include a count alleging violations of federal antitrust laws.
Intergraph asserted claims for compensatory and treble damages resulting from Intel’s wrongful conduct and infringing acts,
and punitive damages in an amount sufficient to punish and deter Intel’'s wrongful conduct. Additionally, the Company
requested that Intel be enjoined from continuing the alleged wrongful conduct which is anticompetitive and/or violates federal
antitrust laws, so as to permit Intergraph uninterrupted development and sale of Intel-based products.

On November 21, 1997, the Company filed a motion in the Alabama Court to enjoin Intel from disrupting or delaying its supply
of products and product information pending resolution of Intergraph’s legal action. On April 10, 1998, the Alabama Court
ruled in favor of Intergraph and enjoined Intel from any action adversely affecting Intel's business relationship with Intergraph
or Intergraph's ability to design, develop, produce, manufacture, market, or sell products incorporating, or based upon, Intel
products or information. On April 16, 1998, Intel appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (the
“Appeals Court”), and on November 5, 1999, the Appeals Court vacated the preliminary injunction that had been entered by the
Alabama Court. This ruling by the Appeals Court did not impact the Company’s operations due to an Agreement and Consent
Order which Intel entered into with the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) on March 17, 1999, not to restrict sales or take
coercive actions such as those alleged by the Company in its lawsuit against Intel.

On June 17, 1998, Inte! filed its answer in the Alabama case, which included counterclaims against Intergraph, including
claims that Intergraph had infringed seven patents of Intel. On July 8, 1998, the Company filed its answer to the [ntel counter-
claims, among other things denying any liability under the patents asserted by Intel. On January 11, 2002, Intel stipulated to
the dismissal of one of the alleged counterclaim patents. The Company continues to vigorously defend the remaining counter-
claims. The Company does not believe that Intel's remaining counterclaims, including Intel patent counterclaims, will result in
a material adverse consequence for the Company.

23




24

On June 17, 1998, Intel filed a motion before the Alabama Court requesting a determination that Intel is licensed to use the
Clipper Patents. This “license defense” was based on Intel’s interpretation of the Company’s acquisition of the Advanced
Processor Division of Fairchild Semiconductor Corporation in 1987. On September 15, 1998, the Company filed a cross motion
with the Alabama Court requesting summary adjudication of the “license defense” in favor of the Company. On November 13,
1998, the Company amended its complaint to include two additional counts of patent infringement against Intel. The Company
requested the court to issue a permanent injunction enjoining Intel from further infringement and to order that the financial
impact of the infringement be calculated and awarded in treble to Intergraph. On December 6, 1999, in order to obtain protec-
tion under the aforementioned FTC Consent Order, the Company withdrew its request for a patent injunction against Intel’s P5
and P6 families of microprocessors. (Intel's P5 and P6 processor families include the Pentium, Pentium Pro, Pentium II, and
Pentium I1T microprocessors, but specifically exclude Intel’s Pentium 4, Pentium 4 Xeon, and Itanium families of microproces-
sors.) On June 4, 1999, the Alabama Court granted the Company’s September 15, 1598, motion and ruled that Intel had no
license to use the Company’s Clipper Patents; however, on October 12, 1999, the Alabama Court reversed its June 4, 1999, order
and dismissed the Company’s patent claims against Intel based upon Intel’s “license defense.” The Company appealed the
Alabama Court’s October 12, 1999, order to the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Gircuit. On March 1, 2001, the
Appeals Court reversed the October 12, 1999, decision of the Alabama Court, specifically holding that Intel was never licensed
under the Company’s Clipper patents. On March 15, 2001, Intel filed a petition for rehearing with the Appeals Court, requesting
that it reconsider its March 1, 2001, decision. The Appeals Gourt subsequently denied Intel’s motion for reconsideration on
April 9, 2001. Intel has no further recourse with regard to the assertion of the “license defense.” The Company believes that the
Federal Circuit's March 1, 2001, patent license decision is well supported by law and fact, and the Company will continue to
aggressively pursue its patent case for the payment of royalties by Intel for their use of the Company’s Clipper technology in
Intel’s Pentium line of products.

On March 10, 2000, the Alabama Court entered an order dismissing the antitrust claims of the Company. This dismissal was
based in part upon a February 17, 2000, decision by the Appeals Court in another case (CSU v. Xerox). On April 26, 2000, the
Company appealed this dismissal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. The oral argument for this
appeal was heard on March 5, 2001. The Appeals Court subsequently denied the Company’s appeal on June 8, 2001, The
Company does not believe that the dismissal of the antitrust appeal will materially affect the Company’s remaining claims or the
value of the overall lawsuit.

On March 17, 2000, Intel filed a series of motions in the Alabama Court to dismiss certain Alabama state law claims of the
Company. The Company filed its responses to Intel’s motions on July 17, 2000, together with its own motions to dismiss certain
Intel counterclaims. Intel’s responses were filed on November 3, 2000. The Alabama Court has taken the motions under
submission. No oral argument has been scheduled, and no decision has been entered by the Alabama Court.

The trial date for this case, previously scheduled for June 2000, has been continued until on or after January 1, 2003. Even
though the parties have not been required by the Alabama Court to participate in any court-ordered dispute resolution proce-
dures, the parties have agreed to include the Alabama claims in the court-ordered mediation in the Texas case (see the
discussion on court-ordered mediation in the following section on the Texas litigation).

On July 30, 2001, the Company filed a patent infringement lawsuit against Intel in the United States District Court, in the
Eastern District of Texas. The Company has asserted allegations that two patents relating to parallel instruction computing
(“PIC”) are infringed by Intel's IA-64 EPIC (explicitly parallel instruction computing) processors, including but not limited to
[ntel’s Itanium and McKinley processors. The Company is seeking to prohibit Intel’s use of the Company’s patented PIC
technology through the enforcement of a patent injunction. The case is set for trial on July 1, 2002. Pursuant to local court
rules, and the scheduling order of the Texas Court, the case is set for court-ordered mediation, with a court-appointed mediator
on April 3, 2002. The parties have agreed that the mediation will address all pending litigation matters between the parties,
which currently include the Company’s Alabama Clipper claims and Alabama state law claims, the Texas PIC claims and a
patent inference action pending in the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office.

Effects. The Company ceased further design of its Clipper microprocessor at the end of 1993, and made a substantial invest-
ment in the redesign of its hardware platform for utilization of Intel microprocessors. The Company relied on the assurances,
representations, and commitments of Intel that they would supply Intergraph’s microprocessor needs on fair and reasonable
terms, and would provide Intergraph with the essential technical information, assistance, and advice necessary to utilize the
microprocessors to be developed and supplied by Intel. As a result of the assurances of Intel and its transition to Intel-based
workstations, Intergraph was technologically and economically bound to the use of Intel’s microprocessors. Successful partici-
pation in the high-end workstation market required involvement in Intel product development programs that provide advance
information for the development of new products and permit formulation of standards and specifications for those new
products. During 1997, Intergraph’s product design and release cycle was severely impacted by Intel's refusal to provide




Intergraph with advance product information and information on Intel defects and corrections. Yet, Intel continued to provide
this information to the Company's competitors. Intel’s refusal to provide this vital information, and its interference with the
Company’s ability to work around its withholding of such information, delayed the Company’s new product releases by one to
six months, resulting in lost sales and reduced margins for the Company, which severely impacted the Company's revenues and
profitability. While the April 1998 ruling of the Alabama Court required Intel to provide Intergraph with advance product
samples and technical information, the Company lost considerable sales momentum and continued to feel residual effects from
the dispute through the end of 1999 and into 2000. While Intel was supplying the Company with advance product samples and
technical information, the Company believes that their responsiveness was not at the same level as prior to the dispute. In 1999
and 2000, demand for the Company’s hardware products continued to decline as the Company was unable to recover
completely from the loss of momentum caused by Intel's actions. Asa result, in the third quarter, the Company exited the
personal computer and generic server businesses and narrowed the focus of its ICS business segment to workstations, specialty
servers, digital video products, and 3D graphics cards. In third quarter 2000, due to an inability to stem hardware losses, the
Company sold its Intense3D graphics accelerator division and its high-end workstation and server business and closed the
remainder of its hardware development operation.

Damages. During the course of the Intel litigation, the Company has employed a variety of experts to prepare estimates of the
damages suffered by the Company under various ctaims of injury brought by the Company. The following supplemental
damage estimates were provided to Intel in August 2001 in due course of the litigation process: estimated damages for injury
covered under non-patent claims of $194 million in lost profits, and estimated additional damages for injury covered under
non-patent claims for the loss of the Company's hardware operations of §160 million, and/or approximately §150 million in
direct out-of-pocket expenses. Patent claims damages are calculated on a percentage of infringing sales, together with a possi-
ble multiplier for willful infringement damages. The Company’s supplemental patent royalty damage reports provided to Intel
in August 2001 in due course of the litigation process estimate that a reasonable royalty rate for infringed patents could range
between .5 and 4.75 percent. Intel disputes the Company’s damage conclusions, and in the September/October 2001 time
frame submitted its own damage reports in the due course of the litigation which differ from the Company’s damage reports.
The Company’s damage reports are estimates only and any recovery of damages in this litigation could be substantially less
than these estimates or substantially greater than these estimates depending on a variety of factors that cannot be determined at
this time. Factors that could lead to recovery of substantially less than these estimates include, but are not limited to, the
failure of the Alabama Court or the Appeals Court to sustain the legal basis for one or more of the Company’s claims, the failure
of the jury to award amounts consistent with these estimates, the failure of the Alabama Court or the Appeals Court to sustain
any jury award in amounts consistent with these estimates, and the settlement by the Company of the Intel litigation in an
amount inconsistent with these estimates. Factors that could lead to recovery of substantially greater than these estimates
include, but are not limited to, success by the Company in recovering punitive damages on one or more of its patent and/or
non-patent claims. The Company believes that current and potential legal proceedings relating to the Company’s Clipper and
PIC patents may have a significant impact on current litigants as well as others in the computer industry. As a result, the
Company is mindful that [ntel or other potential litigants of the Company may, without intending to obtain contro! of the corpo-
ration, use the threat of an unfriendly takeover bid as a means to force the Company to setle to avert the threat of a takeover.

The Company believes it was necessary to take legal action against Intel in order to defend its former workstation business, its
intellectual property, and the investments of its shareholders. The Company is vigorously prosecuting its positions and defending
against Intel’s claims and believes it will prevail in these maters, but at present is unable to predict an outcome. The Company
does expect, however, that it will continue to incur substantial legal and administrative expenses in connection with the lawsuit.

The Company has other ongoing litigation, none of which is considered to represent a material contingency for the Company at
this time; however, any unanticipated unfavorable ruling in any of these proceedings could have an adverse impact on the
Company’s results of operations and cash flow

Arbitration Settlement. The Company maintains an equity ownership position in BSI, the developer and owner of
MicroStation, 4 software product for which the Company serves as a nonexclusive distributor. In March 1996, BSI commenced
arbitration against the Company with the American Arbitration Association, Atlanta, Georgia, relating to the respective rights of the
companies under their April 1987 Software License Agreement and other matters, including the Company’s alleged failure to
properly pay to BSI certain royalties on its sales of BSI software products, and seeking significant damages. On March 26, 1999,
the Company and BSI executed a Settlement Agreement and Mutual General Release (“the Agreement”) to settle this arbitration
and mutually release all claims related to the arbitration or otherwise, except for certain litigation between the companies that was
the subject of a separate settlement agreement and payment for products and services obtained or provided in the normal course
of business since January 1,1999. Both the Company and BSI expressly denied any fault, liability, or wrongdoing concerning the
claims that were the subject matter of the arbitration and settled solely to avoid continuing litigation with each other.
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Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company on April 1, 1999, made payment to BSI of $12 million and transferred to BSI
ownership of 3,000,000 of the shares of BSI's Class A common stock owned by the Company. The transferred shares were valued
at approximately $3.5 million on the Company’s books. As a result of the settlement, the Company’s equity ownership in BSI
was reduced from approximately 50% to approximately 31%. Additionally, the Company had a $1.2 million net receivable from
BSI relating to business conducted prior to January 1, 1999, which was written off as part of the settlement.

In first quarter 1999, the Company accrued a non-operating charge to earnings of approximately $8.6 million in connection
with the settlement, representing the portion of settlement costs not previously accrued. This charge is shown as “Arbitration
settlement” in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations.

The $12 million payment to BSI was funded primarily from existing cash balances. For further discussion regarding the
Company’s liquidity, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources” following.

Other Risks and Uncertatnties. The Company owns and maintains a number of registered patents and registered and
unregistered copyrights, trademarks, and service marks. The patents and copyrights held by the Company are the principal
means by which the Company preserves and protects the intellectual property rights embodied in the Company’s products.
Similarly, trademark rights held by the Company are used to preserve and protect the reputation of the Company’s registered
and unregistered trademarks.

As industry standards proliferate, there is a possibility that the patents of others may become a significant factor in the
Company’s business. Personal computer technology, which was used in the Company’s workstation and server products, is
widely available, and many companies, including Intergraph, have developed and continue to develop patent positions
concerning technological improvements related to personal computers, workstations, and servers. It does not appear that the
Company will be prevented from using the technology necessary to support existing products, since patented technology is
typically available in the industry under royalty-bearing licenses or patent cross licenses, or the technology can be purchased
on the open market.

In addition, computer software technology is increasingly being protected by patents, and many companies, including
Intergraph, are developing patent positions for software innovations. It is unknown at the present time whether various
patented software technology will be made generally available under license, or whether specific innovations will be held by
their inventors and not made available to others. In many cases, it may be possible to employ software techniques that avoid
the patents of others, but the possibility exists that some features needed to compete successfully in a particular segment of the
software market may be unavailable or may require an unacceptably high cost via royalty arrangements. Patented software
techniques that become de facto industry standards are among those that may raise costs or may prevent the Company from
competing successfully in particular markets.

An inability to protect the Company’s copyrights, trademarks, and patents, or to obtain current technical information or any
required patent rights of others through licensing or purchase, all of which are important to success in the markets in which
the Company competes, could significantly reduce the Company’s revenues and adversely affect its results of operations.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2001, cash and short-term investments totaled $110.8 million, down $9 million from December 31, 2000.
Cash generated from operations totaled $24.5 million in 2001 and $41.2 million in 2000, compared to a use of cash of $9.7
million in 1999. Cash generation in 2001 and 2000 reflects the Company’s improved results of operations. The use of cash in
1999 included a $12 million payment to BSI (see “Arbitration Settlement”) and payments to SCI of $10.2 million to purchase
unused inventory (see Notes 13 and 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Severance payments in 2001, 2000, and
1999 totaled $3.6 million, $7.3 million, and $9.7 million, respectively.

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities totaled (§17.5 million), $15.9 million, and $25.5 million in 2001, 2000, and
1999, respectively. Cash provided by investing activities in 2001 included $12.7 million in net proceeds from sales of assets
(primarily receipts of $5.1 million from the additional earn-out provision of the 2000 sale of the Company’s civil, plotting, and
raster product lines to BSI, $3.8 million from the settlement of the Micrografx convertible subordinated debenture, $2 million
from the sale of the Mentor Graphics warrant, and $1.1 million from the sale of Saudi Arabia). Cash used in investing activities
during 2001 included $11 million for the purchase of short-term investments. Cash provided by investing activities in 2000
included $38.4 million in net proceeds from sales of assets, primarily receipts of $13.6 million from the sale of the Company’s
civil, plotting, and raster product lines to BSI, $12.9 million from sales of land and an office building in the Netherlands, $10.3




million from sales of buildings on the Company’s Huntsville, Alabama, campus, $2 million from the sale of a non-core software
product, and $1.5 million from the sale of an investment in an affiliate. Cash provided by investing activities in 1999 included
$11.7 million contributed by the minority interest partner to the start-up of the Z/1 Imaging business and $54.1 million in net
proceeds from sales of assets, including $19.9 million from the fourth quarter 1998 sale of the Company’s manufacturing assets
to SCI, $13.7 million from the sale of an office building in the Netherlands, $11 million from the sale of VeriBest, $6.4 million
from the sale of InterCAP, and $2.5 million from the sale of land. Other significant investing activities in 2001 included expen-
ditures for capitalizable software development of $4.8 million ($10.8 million in 2000 and $20.7 million in 1999) and capital
expenditures of $9.7 million (§7.2 million in 2000 and $10.2 million in 1999), primarily for computer equipment used in
product development and sales and marketing activities.

Net cash used for financing activities totaled $25 million, $21.7 million, and $21 million in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively,
due primarily to net debt repayments of $28.5 million, $23.4 million, and $23.6 million, respectively. In 2001, the Company
used approximately $17.8 million to pay down the term loan with its primary lender and $6.7 million to pay down a long-term
mortgage on an office building in the United Kingdom. In 2000, the Company used approximately $7 million to repay its
Australian term loan and $7.1 million to pay down the term loan with its primary lender. Additionally, in 2000 and 1999, the
Company used approximately $3.8 million and $4.2 million, respectively, to pay off mortgages on disposed European office
buildings. The remaining debt repayment activity in 1999 related primarily to the Company’s term loan and revolving credit
agreement. An additional reduction in the Company’s long-term debt was achieved through termination of a long-term lease
on one of the Company’s facilities in first quarter 2000. The Company accounted for this lease as a financing and, upon termi-
nation, long-term debt of $8.3 million and property, plant, and equipment of $6.5 million were removed from the Company’s
books. See Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further details of these transactions and a summary of the
Company’s outstanding debt at December 31, 2001.

The Company’s average collection period for accounts receivable in 2001 was approximately 88 days, representing a slight
decrease from the prior year. Approximately 74% of the Company’s 2001 revenues were derived from international customers
and the U.S. government, both of which traditionally carry longer collection periods. The Company continues to experience
slow collections throughout the Middle East region, particularly in Saudi Arabia. Total accounts receivable from Middle East
customers was approximately $13.3 million at December 31, 2001, and $17.9 million at December 31, 2000. Total U.S. govern-
ment accounts receivable was $27.7 million at December 31, 2001 ($28.4 million at December 31, 2000). The Company
endeavors to enforce its payment terms with these and other customers, and grants extended payment terms only in very
limited circumstances.

The Company expects that capital expenditures will require $9 million to $12 million in 2002, primarily for computer equip-
ment used in product development and sales and marketing activities. The Company’s term loan and revolving credit
agreement, among other restrictions, limits the leve! of the Company’s capital expenditures.

Under the Company’s January 1997 seven-year fixed term loan and revolving credit agreement (as amended), available
borrowings are determined by the amounts of eligible assets of the Company (the “borrowing base”), as defined in the agree-
ment, primarily accounts receivable, with maximum availability of $50 million. At December 31, 2001, the borrowing base,
representing the maximum available credit under the line, was approximately $39 million, of which §10.9 million was allocated
to support the Company’s letters of credit. In 2001, the Company paid $17.8 million of the term loan with existing cash
balances and proceeds received from the sales of assets. In September 2000, the Company paid $7.1 million of the term loan
with proceeds received from the sale of several idle office buildings. At December 31,2001, the Company had outstanding
borrowings of $424,000 under this agreement, the $100,000 term loan portion of which was classified as long-term debt in the
consolidated balance sheet. The term loan is due at expiration of the agreement.

Borrowings are secured by a pledge of substantially all of the Company’s U.S. assets and certain international receivables. The
rate of interest on all borrowings under the agreement is the greater of 6.5% or the Wells Fargo base rate of interest (4.75% at
December 31, 2001) plus .125%. There are provisions in the agreement which lower the interest rate upon achievement of
sustained profitability by the Company, but only to the minimum interest rate of 6.5%. The agreement requires the Company to
pay a facility fee at an annual rate of .15% of the amount available under the credit line, an unused credit line fee at an annual
rate of .20% of the average unused portion of the revolving credit line, a letter of credit fee at an annual rate of .75% of the
undrawn amount of all outstanding letters of credit, and a monthly agency fee. An amendment was executed on August I,
2001, that extends the current agreement until January 2004 with no cancellation penalty to the Company after January 2003,
allows pay-down of the term loan portion of the line, and lowers the facility to $50 million, which will provide for annual
savings of approximately $650,000 to the Company.
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The term loan and revolving credit agreement contains certain financial covenants of the Company; including minimum net
worth, minimum current ratio, and maximum levels of capital expenditures, and restrictive covenants that limit or prevent
various business transactions (including purchases of the Company’s stock, dividend payments, mergers, acquisitions of or
investments in other businesses, and disposal of assets including individual businesses, subsidiaries, and divisions) and limit or
prevent certain other business changes without approval. The Company's net worth covenant was increased to $250 million,
effective August 1, 2001.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately $3.7 million in debt on which interest is charged under various floating
rate arrangements (see Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). The Company is exposed to market risk of
future increases in interest rates on these loans. The Company estimates that its results of operations would not be materially
affected by a two-point increase or decrease in the average interest rates related to its floating rate debt. This hypothetical
change in rates was determined based on the trend of the Company's actual rates over the past four years and represents the
maximum fluctuation experienced in any of those years. The Company’s estimate assumes a level of debt consistent with the
December 31, 2001, level.

The Company’s general financial condition improved in 2001, and it generated positive operating cash flow for the second
consecutive year. The Company is managing its cash very closely and believes that the combination of improved cash flow from
operations, existing cash balances, and cash available under the revolving credit agreement will be adequate to meet cash
requirements for 2002, For the near term, the Company also anticipates that its cash position may benefit from further sales of
excess real estate and facilities. However, for the longer term, the Company must continue to align its operating expenses with
the levels of revenue being generated if it is to fund business growth without reliance on funds from sales of assets and external
financing. The Company anticipates no significant non-operating events that will require the use of cash, with the possible
exception of its stock purchase program (see Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Gains on Sales of Assets

“Gains on sales of assets” in the consolidated statements of operations and cash flows consists of the net gains and losses recognized
by the Company on sales of various non-core subsidiaries, divisions, and product lines, and gains recorded on real estate sales.

In 2001, the Company reported an additional gain from the BSI transaction of approximately $10.1 million as part of the initial
consideration for the sale, as well as consideration for transferred maintenance revenues for the products sold to BSI, as
provided for in the original sale agreement. Also in 2001, the Company reported a $600,000 additional gain from the 3Dlabs
transaction. This gain was the result of the final calculation and settlement of the earn-out provisions with 3Dlabs. In the third
quarter of 2001, the Company sold its Saudi Arabian operation, reporting a $680,000 gain. This gain is offset by an impairment
reserve of $150,000 for the expected loss on the completion of the sale of IMEL.

In 2000, the Company recorded a gain of $23 million on the sale of its civil, plotting, and raster product lines to BSI and a gain
of $15.7 million on the sale of its Intense3D graphics accelerator division to 3DIabs. Also in 2000, the Company sold several real
estate holdings including some of the buildings on its Huntsville, Alabama, campus at an aggregate gain of $1.9 million, and
land and 2 building in the Netherlands at an aggregate gain of $5.2 million. Other significant transactions for 2000 include a
$2 million gain recognized on the sale of a non-core software product line, a §1.5 million gain on the sale of an investment in
an affiliate, 2 $1.5 million gain on the termination of a long-term capital lease, and a loss of $1.3 million on the sale of the
Company’s Singapore subsidiary.

In 1999, the Company sold its InterCAP subsidiary at a gain of $11.5 million. 1999 also includes a $1.4 million gain on the sale
ofland. See the preceding section on “Discontinued Operation” for a discussion of the Company's October 1999 sale of its
VeriBest business segment, for which a resulting gain of $14.4 million was recorded. This gain is reflected as “Gain on sale of
discontinued operation, net of income taxes” in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations and in “Gains on sales of assets”
in the 1999 consolidated statement of cash flows.

See Notes 13 and 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for complete details of the Company’s acquisitions and
divestitures during the three-vear period ended December 31, 2001.




Impact of Currency Fluctuations and Currency Risk Management

International markets, particularly Europe and Asia, continue in importance to the industry and to the Company. The
Company’s operations are subject to and may be adversely affected by a variety of risks inherent in doing business internation-
ally, such as government policy restrictions, currency exchange fluctuations, and other factors.

Fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar in international markets can have a significant impact on the Company’s results of
operations. For 2001, approximately 47% of the Company's revenues were derived from customers outside the United States,
primarily through subsidiary operations. Most subsidiaries sell to customers and incur and pay operating expenses in local
currencies. These local currency revenues and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars for reporting purposes. A stronger U.S.
dollar will decrease the level of reported U.S. dollar orders and revenues, decrease the dollar gross margin, and decrease
reported dollar operating expenses of the international subsidiaries. The strengthening of the U.S. dollar with respect to the
currencies in Europe has had a negative impact on the Company’s reported results of operation in all years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2001; however, in 1999, the associated negative impact was partially mitigated by weakening of the
dollar in the Company’s Asian markets. The Company estimates that the strengthening of the U.S. dollar in its international
markets adversely impacted its results of operations by approximately $.03, $.08, and $.02 per share (basic and diluted) in
2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The Company estimates that the result of a uniform 10% strengthening in the value of the
dollar relative to the currencies in which the Company’s sales are denominated would result in a decrease in earnings of
approximately $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Likewise, a uniform 10% weakening in the value of the dollar
would result in increased earnings of approximately $3 million. This calculation assumes that each exchange rate would
change in the same direction relative to the U.S. dollar. In addition to the direct effects of changes in exchange rates, exchange
rate fluctuations may also affect the volume of sales and foreign currency sales prices. The Company’s estimation of the effects
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates does not consider potential changes in sales levels or local currency prices. The
Company’s income statement exposure to currency fluctuations has declined successively over the past three years as the result
of declining hardware sales in its international regions. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a
summary of the Company’s revenues by geographic area.

The Company conducts business in all major markets outside the United States, but the most significant of these operations
with respect to currency risk are located in Europe and Asia. Local currencies are the functional currencies for the Company’s
European subsidiaries. The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for all other international subsidiaries; however, the
Company's Canadian subsidiary changed its functional currency from the U.S. dollar to its local currency in January 2002. See
Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the Company’s policy for managing the currency risks
associated with its international operations.

In 2001, 2000, and 1999, the Company incurred net foreign exchange losses from its continuing operations of $1.5 million, $3.9
million, and $1.3 million, respectively. The Company’s exchange losses for the past three years have primarily resulted from the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the Euro, particularly with respect to Euro-denominated intercompany receivables of
the U.S. parent company. The 2001 exchange loss also included approximately $715,000 in loss incurred as the result of
subsidiary recapitalization. At December 31, 1999, the Company's only outstanding forward exchange contracts related to
formalized intercompany loans between the Company’s European subsidiaries that were immaterial to the Company’s financial
position. Effective first quarter 2000, the Company ceased hedging any of its foreign currency risks. At December 31, 2001, the
Company had no forward exchange contracts outstanding.

The Company estimates that a uniform 10% strengthening or weakening in the value of the dollar relative to the currencies in
which such intercompany receivables and loans are denominated at December 31, 2001, would not result in a significant loss
or improvement in earnings. This calculation assumes that each exchange rate would change in the same direction relative to
the U.S. dollar. The Company's intercompany receivables have declined as the result of declining sales volumes, reducing the
Company’s currency exposure with respect to these items.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risks related to certain financial instruments, primarily foreign currency denomi-
nated debt securities held by its European subsidiaries and a long-term mortgage on one of its European facilities. The net
effect of 2 uniform 10% change in exchange rates relative to the currencies in which these financial instruments are denomi-
nated would not have a material impact on the Company's results of operations.
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Euro Conversion. On January 1, 1999, eleven member countries of the European Monetary Union (“EMU”) fixed the
conversion rates of their national currencies to a single common currency, the “Euro.” In September 2000, and with effect from
January 1, 2001, Greece became the twelfth member of the EMU to adopt the Euro. Euro currency began to circulate on
January 1, 2002, and the individual national currencies of the participating countries were withdrawn by February 28, 2002. All
of the Company’s financial systems currently accommodate the Euro and, during 2001, 2000, and 1999, the Company
conducted business in Euros with its customers and vendors who chose to do so without encountering significant administra-
tive problems. While the Company continues to evaluate the potential impacts of the common currency, at present it has not
identified significant risks related to the Euro and does not anticipate that full Euro conversion in 2002 will have a material
impact on its results of operations or financial condition. To date, the conversion to one common currency has not impacted
the Company’s pricing in European markets.

See Notes 1.and 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information related to management of currency risk.
FOURTH QUARTER 2001

Revenues in fourth quarter were $133.1 million, down 8% from fourth quarter 2000. The Company earned net income of $§11.9
million (.23 per share diluted) for the quarter, compared to net income of $18 million (.36 per share diluted) in fourth
quarter 2000. The revenue decline from the prior-year period was due primarily to  decline in international maintenance
revenue and U.S. and international professional services revenue. Despite the decline in revenues, the Company reported
income from operations before reorganization charges of §.03 per share diluted, compared to a loss from operations of $.06 per
share diluted for fourth quarter 2000. The impact of the revenue decline was offset by an increase of approximately $4.2
million in gross margin (from 39% of total revenues in 2000 to 46% in 2001) primarily from increased software content in the
product mix and a 17% decline in cost of revenues. Operating expenses were basically flat with the fourth quarter 2000 level.
Fourth quarter 2001 operating results were increased by gains on sales of assets of $5.9 million (8.11 per share diluted), prima-
rily related to additional purchase price consideration on the sale of the Company’s civil, plotting, and raster product lines to
BSI, and other non-operating income of $3.9 million for settlement of the Micrografx convertible debenture and $1.7 million
for the sale of the Mentor Graphics warrant. Fourth quarter 2000 operating results were reduced by reorganization charges of
$5.1 million ($.10 per share diluted) and increased by gains on sales of assets of $30.4 million ($.61 per share diluted), prima-
rily related to the sale of the Company’s civil, plotting, and raster product lines to BSI and additional purchase price
consideration earned in connection with the third quarter 2000 sale of the Company’s graphics accelerator division to 3Dlabs.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 141, Business Combinations, requiring companies to account for all business combinations using the purchase
method. This statement became effective for the Company in the third quarter of 2001 and relates to all business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001, or acquisitions dated July 1, 2001, or later. This statement did not have an impact on the
Company's consolidated operating results or financial position for 2001 as the Company did not engage in any business combi-
nations or acquisitions after its effective date.

In June 2001, FASB issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, requiring companies to test goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at least annually for impairment, and to continue amortization of intangible assets
with finite useful lives over the useful lives, but without the restraint of an arbitrary ceiling. The statement also requires disclo-
sure of carrying values of goodwill (by aggregate and reportable segment), carrying amounts of intangible assets by major
intangible asset class for those subject to amortization and those not subject to amortization, and the estimated intangible asset
amortization expense for the next five years. This statement will become effective for the Company in first quarter 2002, and
will be applied to all goodwill and intangible assets recognized in the financial statements at that date. Any impairment losses
arising due to the initial application of this statement will be reported as resulting from a change in accounting principle. The
Company currently reviews all goodwill and intangible assets on a monthly basis and does not expect the adoption of this state-
ment to have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated operating results or financial position.




In August 2001, FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, which super-
sedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.
This statement provides guidance on the accounting for long-lived assets to be held and used, and those to be disposed of by
sale and other than by sale. Goodwill has been removed from the scope of this statement and is now addressed in SFAS 142
(discussed above). This statement will become effective for the Company in the first quarter of 2002. The provisions of this
statement are to be applied prospectively. At December 31, 2001, and 2000, the Company had no goodwill recorded. The
Company currently reviews long-lived assets on a monthly basis and does not expect the adoption of this statement to have a
significant impact on the Company’s consolidated operating results or financial position.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's significant accounting policies are disclosed in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The prepara-
tion of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires that management use judgments
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. As a result, there is some risk that
reported financial results could have been materially different had different methods, assumptions, and estimates been used.

The Company believes that of its significant accounting policies, the following may involve a higher degree of judgment and
complexity as used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

IGS, IMGS, and IPS derive a significant portion of their revenue from contracts accounted for by the percentage-of-completion
method with contractual terms generally fixed. The Company regularly reviews its progress on these contracts and reviews the
estimated costs of fulfilling its obligations. If the Company does not accurately estimate the resources required or the scope of
the work to be performed, or does not manage these contracts properly within the planned periods of time or satisfy its obliga-
tions under the contracts, then future revenue and margins may be significantly and negatively affected, or losses on existing
contracts may need to be recognized. Any resulting reductions in revenues, margins or contract losses could be material to the
Company’s results of operations.

Capitalized Software

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurred after the technological feasibility of new software products has been established
and amortizes those costs against the revenues later generated by those products. Though the Company regularly reviews its
capitalized development costs to ensure recognition of any decline in value, it is possible that, for any given product, revenues
will not materialize in amounts anticipated due to industry conditions that include intense price and performance competition,
or that product lives will be reduced due to shorter product cycles. Should these events occur, the carrying amount of capital-
ized development costs would be reduced, producing adverse effects on the Company’s systems margin and results of
operations. During 2001 and 2000, the Company assessed projects in process and associated costs capitalized for any net
realizable value concerns. Based on this assessment, the Company decided to cease further capitalization and increase product
development expense by $8.6 million and $3.9 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively; related to these projects such that current
capitalized costs would be at net realizable value.

Deferred Taxes

The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be
realized. While the Company has considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in
assessing the need for the valuation allowance, in the event the Company were to determine that it would be able to realize its
deferred tax assets in the future in excess of its net recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would increase
income in the period such determination was made. Likewise, should the Company determine that it would not be able to
realize all or part of its net deferred tax asset in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would be charged to income
in the period such determination was made.
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Investment in Debt and Equity Securities

The Company holds minority interests in companies having operations or technology in areas within its strategic focus, some of
which are publicly traded and have highly volatile share prices, and some of which are in non-publicly traded companies
whose value is difficult to determine. The Company records an investment impairment charge when it believes an investment
has experienced a decline in value that is other than temporary. Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating
results of underlying investments could result in losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments that may
not be reflected in an investment's current carrying value, thereby possibly requiring an impairment charge in the future.

Bad Debt Reserves

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to
make required payments. If the financial condition of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impair-
ment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Inventory

The Company regularly estimates the degree of technological obsolescence in its inventories and provides inventory reserves on
that basis. Though the Company believes it has adequately provided for any such declines in inventory value to date, any
unanticipated change in technology could significantly affect the value of the Company’s inventories and thereby adversely
affect gross margins and results of operations. In addition, an inability of the Company to accurately forecast its inventory
needs related to its warranty and maintenance obligations could adversely affect gross margin and results of operations.




Intergraph Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2001 2000
(In thousands except share and per share amounts)
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents $ 99,773 $119,848
Short-term investments 11,035 —
Total cash and short-term investmenis 110,808 119,848
Accounts receivable, net 158,873 178,862
Inventories, net 24,125 25,290
Other current assets 32,687 53,475
Total current assets 326,493 377 475
Investments in affiliates 20,654 14,262
Capitalized software development costs 24,209 23871
Other assets 34,680 42,971
Property, plant, and equipment, net 51,974 56,329
Total Assels $ 458,010 $ 514,908
Liabilities and Sharebolders’ Equity
Trade accounts payable $ 22,897 $ 35224
Accrued compensation 31,693 33,257
Other accrued expenses 43,765 61,591
Billings in excess of sales 37,968 46,603
Income taxes payable 9,913 10,984
Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt 2,619 5,765
Total current linbilities 148,855 193,424
Deferred income taxes 2,573 6,604
Long-term debt 1,114 25,265
Other noncurrent liabilities 2,728 4612
Total noncurrent liabilities 6,416 36,481
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries 7,526 7,003
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $.10 per share —

100,000,000 shares authorized;

57,361,362 shares issued 5,736 5,736
Additional paid-in capital 210,748 214,079
Retained earnings 208,268 188,326
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (20,603) (15,931)

404,149 392,210
Less — cost 0f 7,539,419 treasury shares

at December 31, 2001, and 7,836,452

treasury shares at December 31, 2000 (108,936) (114,210

Total shareholders’ equity 295,213 278,000

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 458,010 $514,908

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Intergraph Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands except per share amounts)
Revenues
Systems $301,483 $426,791 $623,451
Maintenance 125,305 160,456 186,766
Services 105,273 103,207 104,663
Total revenues 532,061 690,454 914,830
Cost of revenues
Systems 153,790 266,147 436,254
Maintenarnce £6,367 87,793 100,823
Services 78,578 84237 87,868
Total cost of revenues 298,735 438,177 624945
Grass profit 233,326 252,277 289,935
Product development 53,892 56,319 62,638
Sales and marketing 96,258 118 402 169,805
General and administrative 75,473 92,699 109,336
Reorganization charges (credit) (384) 8,498 15,596
Income (loss) from operations 8,087 (23,641) (67,440)
Gains on sales of assets 11,243 49,546 13,223
Arbitration settlement — — (8,562)
Interest expense (1,793) (4,031) (5,663)
Other income (expense), net 11,381 (2,648) (4,016)
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and minorily interest 28,918 19,226 (72,458)
Income tax expense (8,500) (6,600) (5,500)
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before minority interest 20,418 12,626 (77,958)
Minority interest in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries (476) (2,531) (603)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 19,942 10,095 (78,561)
Gain on sale of discontinued operation, net of income taxes —_ —_— 14,384
Loss from discontinued operation, net of income taxes —_— — (7,400)
Net tncome (loss) $19,942 $ 10,095 $(71,577)
Income (loss) per share - basic
Continuing operations $ .40 $ 20 $ (1.60)
Discontinued operation — — 14
Net income (loss) per share $ .40 $ 20 $ (146)
Income (loss) per share - diluted
Continuing operations $ .39 $ 20 $ (1.60)
Discontinued operation — — 14
Net tncome (loss) per share $ .39 $ .20 $ (146
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 49,578 49 368 48,906
- diluted 51,620 49,855 48,906

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Intergraph Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Cash Provided By (Used For):
Operating Activities
Net income (loss) $ 19,942 $ 10,095 $(71,577)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 11,917 14,980 21,228
Amortization 14,307 18,906 26,878
Non-cash portion of arbitration settlement — — 3,530
Non-cash portion of reorganization charges — 5,696 9,614
Write-down of convertible debenture — 5,000 —
Gains on sales of assets (11,243) (49,546) 27,607
Net changes in current assets and liabilities (10,454) 36,115 28,253
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 24,469 41,246 (9,681)
Investing Activities
Net proceeds from sales of assets 12,734 38,362 54,056
Contributions from minority interest partner — — 11,732
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (9,675) (7,244) (10,221)
Purchases of short-term investments (11,035) — —
Capitalized software development costs (4,827) (10,829) (20,656)
Capitalized internal use software costs (1,973) (1,057) (5.875)
Business acquisition, net of cash acquired (2,904) — —
Other 148 (3,349) (3,579)
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities (17,532) 15,883 25,457
Financing Activities
Gross borrowings 1,653 — —
Debt repayment (28,518) (23,368) (23,605)
Treasury stock repurchase (1,875) — —
Proceeds of employee stock purchases and exercises
of stock options 3,818 1,630 2,612
Net cash used for financing activities (24,922) (21,738) (20,993)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (2,090) (4,056) (1,743)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (20,075) 31,335 (6,960)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 119,848 88,513 95,473
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 99,773 $119,848 $ 88,513

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Intergraph Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Accmulated
Additional Other Total
Comimorn Paid-in Retwined — Comprebensive  Treasury  Sharehbolders’
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Egusdty
(In thousands except share amounts)
Balance at January 1, 1999 $ 5,736 $ 222,705 § 249,808 $ 4161 § (127078)  § 355332
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss — — (71,577 — — (71,577
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — (9,340) — —
Less: Net translation gain realized upon
sales of subsidiaries — — — (327) — —
Net foreign currency translation adjustments — — — (9,667) — (9,667)
Comprehensive loss — — — — — {81,244)
Issuance of 557,713 shares under employee
stock purchase plan — (5,539) — — 8,130 2,591
Issuance of 16,750 shares upon exercise
of stock options — (223) —_ — 244 21
Balance at December 31, 1999 5,736 216,943 178,231 (5,506) (118,704) 276,700
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income — — 10,095 — — 10,095
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustments —_ — — (2,738) — —_
Less: Net translation loss realized upon
liquidation of subsidiary — — — 252 — —
Net foreign currency translation adjustments — — — (2,486) — (2,486)
Net unrealized holding losses on investments ~ — — — (7,939 — (7,939
Comprehensive loss — — — — — (330)
Issuance of 305,447 shares under employee
stock purchase plan — (2,839) — — 4,452 1,613
Issuance of 3,250 shares upon exercise
of stock options — (25) — — 4 17
Balance ot December 31, 2000 5,736 214,079 188,326 (15,931 (114,210) 278,000
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income — — 19,942 — — 19,942
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — (1,385) — (1,385)
Net unrealized holding losses on investments ~ — — — (3,287) — (3,287)
Comprehensive income — — — — — 15,270
Repurchase of 195,000 shares of treasury stock ~ — — — — (1,875) (1,875)
Issuance of 147 478 shares under employee
stock purchase plan — (746) — — 2,143 1,397
Issuance of 344,555 shares upon exercise of
stock options — (2,585) — — 5,006 2,421
Balance af December 31, 2001 $5,736  $210,748 $208,268 $(20,603) $(108,936)  $295,213

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Intergraph Corporatior and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31,2001

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Intergraph Corporation and its
majority-owned subsidiaries. Al significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
As discussed in Note 4, the Company sold its VeriBest, Inc. business segment on October 31, 1999, and accordingly its operating
results have been removed from continuing operations and reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented
through the date of sale.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires that management make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
determine whether contingent assets and liabilities, if any, are disclosed in the financial statements. The ultimate resolution of
issues requiring these estimates and assumptions could differ significantly from the resolution currently anticipated by
management and on which the financial statements are based.

The Company’s continuing operations are divided into five separate business segments for operational and management
purposes: Intergraph Government Solutions (“1GS”), Intergraph Mapping and GIS Solutions (“IMGS”), Intergraph Process,
Power & Offshore (“PP&0”), Intergraph Public Safety, Inc. (“IPS”), and Z/1 Imaging Corporation (“Z/l Imaging”). See Note
12 for a description of these business segments.

The Company’s products are sold worldwide, with United States and European revenues representing approximately 81% of
total revenues for 2001.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments: The Company’s excess funds are generally invested in short-term,
highly liquid, interest-bearing securities, which may include short-term municipal bonds, time deposits, money market
preferred stocks, commercial paper, and U.S. government securities. The Company generally limits the amount of credit
exposure from any single issuer of securities. Cash equivalents and short-term investments are stated at fair market value
based on quoted market prices. For purposes of financial statement presentation, investments with original maturities of three
months or less are considered to be cash equivalents, and investments with original maturities of greater than three months but
less than a year are considered to be short-term investments.

The Company’s investments in debt securities are valued at fair market value with any unrealized holding gains and losses
reported as a component of “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” in the consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2001,
and 2000, the Company held various debt securities maturing within three months or less with fair market values of approxi-
mately $37,300,000 and $63,000,000, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses on debt securities sold during the three-year
period ended December 31, 2001, were not significant, and there were no unrealized holding gains or losses on debt securities
at December 31, 2001, or 2000.

The Company’s December 31, 2001, consolidated cash balance includes approximately $10,638,000 held by Z/1 Imaging, 2
60%-owned consolidated subsidiary.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market and are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Raw materials $ 7,076 $ 6,124
Work-in-process 1,952 3,850
Finished goods 9,245 6,077
Service spares 5,852 9,239
Totals $24,125 $25,290
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Inventories on hand at December 31, 2001, and 2000, relate primarily to continuing specialized hardware assembly activity in
the Company’s IGS and Z/1 Imaging business segments, and to the Company’s continuing warranty and maintenance obliga-
tions on computer hardware previously sold.

The Company’s December 31, 2001, and 2000, raw materials and work-in-process balances have been reclassified to reflect
certain parts as raw materials rather than work-in-process. Amounts currently reflected as work-in-process relate primarily to
sales contracts accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method.

The Company regularly estimates the degree of technological obsolescence in its inventories and provides inventory reserves on
that basis. Though the Company believes it has adequately provided for any such declines in inventory value to date, any
unanticipated change in technology could significantly affect the value of the Company’s inventories and thereby adversely
affect gross margins and results of operations. In addition, an inability of the Company to accurately forecast its inventory
needs related to its warranty and maintenance obligations could adversely affect gross margin and results of operations.

Other Current Assefs: Other current assets reflected in the Company's consolidated balance sheets consist primarily of
prepaid expenses, non-trade receivables, the current portion of notes receivable from sales of various non-core businesses and
assets, refundable income taxes, and the Company’s net current deferred tax asset. See Notes 9, 13, and 15 for a discussion of
significant transactions affecting these components in 2001.

Investments in Affliates: Investments in companies in which the Company believes it has the ability to influence operations
or finances are accounted for by the equity method. Investments in companies in which the Company does not exert such influence
are accounted for at fair value if such values are readily determinable, and at cost if such values are not readily determinable.

On April 1, 1999, as the result of an arbitration settlement with Bentley Systems, Inc. (“BSI"), the Company’s equity ownership in
BSI was reduced from approximately 50% to approximately 31%. The Company does not account for its investment in BSI under
the equity method due to a lack of significant influence. See Note 13 and “Arbitration Settlement” included in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A") for further discussion of the Company’s
arbitration proceeding and business relationship with BSL. The book value of the Company’s investment in BSI was approxi-
mately $9,190,000 at December 31, 2001, and 2000. The Company is unable to determine the fair vatue of this investment.

On July 21, 2000, as initial proceeds from the sale of its Intense3D graphics accelerator division, the Company received approxi-
mately 3,600,000 of the common shares of 3Dlabs, constituting an equity ownership interest of approximately 19.7%.
Approximately fifteen percent of these shares have been placed in escrow to cover any potential claims against the Company by
3Dlabs. On March 29, 2001, the Company received approximately 7,591,000 shares valued at $10 million, increasing its owner-
ship to approximately 37%. These shares have a three-year irrevocable proxy that prevents the Company from having any
voting rights; therefore, this investment is not accounted for using the equity method. The Company maintains its investment
in 3Dlabs at market value, with any unrealized holding gains or losses recorded as a component of “Accumulated other
comprehensive loss” in the consolidated balance sheets. The market value of the Company’s investment in 3Dlabs, excluding
the shares held in escrow, was approximately $10,641,000 at December 31, 2001. The Company has recorded an unrealized
holding loss of approximately $10,607,000 for the decline in market value of this investment from the date of acquisition
through December 31, 2001. See Notes 13 and 15 for further information regarding the 3Dlabs transaction.

Capitalized Software Development Costs: Product development costs are charged to expense as incurred; however,
the costs incurred for the development of computer software that will be sold, leased, or otherwise marketed are capitalized
when technological feasibility of the product has been established. Such capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period of two to three years. Amortization of these capitalized costs, included in “Cost of revenues - Systems” in the
consolidated statements of operations, amounted to $4,200,000 in 2001, $9,200,000 in 2000, and $14,600,000 in 1999.
Amortization included in discontinued operations amounted to $2,400,000 in 1999.

Although the Company regularly reviews its capitalized development costs to ensure recognition of any decline in value, it is
possible that, for any given product, revenues will not materialize in amounts anticipated due to industry conditions that
include intense price and performance competition, or that product lives will be reduced due to shorter product cycles. Should
either of these events occur, the carrying amount of capitalized development costs would be reduced, producing adverse effects
on systems cost of revenues and results of operations. The Company increased product development expenses by $8,646,000
and $3,911,000 in 2001 and 2000, respectively, for costs normally eligible for capitalization due to net realizable value concerns.
Accumulated amortization (net of fully amortized projects) in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2001, and 2000,
was $8,800,000 and $10,300,000, respectively.




In October 2000, the Company entered into a research services agreement to develop an advanced, next-generation shipbuild-
ing software product for the design of commercial and military vessels. The agreement allows for two years of cost funding by
the customer to bring the software to commercial release. The terms include a 15% escrow of consulting work until release of
product to the customer, sliding scale royalty payable to the customer on future sales of software by the Company, and customer
commitment to purchase and pay maintenance on a minimum number of software seats. The Company will retain the intel-
lectual property rights of the software. Services revenues and costs related to the agreement totaled approximately $2,848,000
and $1,906,000, respectively, for 2001, and $2,002,000 and $1,600,000, respectively, for 2000. Research and development
expenses incurred prior to the agreement totaling approximately §9,726,000 were capitalized and are included as a component
of “Capitalized software development costs” in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31,2001, and 2000.

Other Assets: Other assets reflected in the Company's consolidated balance sheets consist primarily of purchased software
and the noncurrent portion of notes receivable from sales of various non-core businesses and assets (see Note 15).

Property, Plant, and Equipment: Property, plant, and equipment, summarized below, are stated at cost. Depreciation
is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives described below.

December 31, 2001 2000
(In thousands)
Land and improvements (15-30 years) $ 7,565 § 7464
Buildings and improvements (30 years) 76,010 77,548
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures (3-8 years) 98,870 136,754
183, 445 221,766
Allowances for depreciation (130,471) (165,437)
Totals $51,974 $ 56,329

Other Noncurrent Liabilities: Other noncurrent liabilities reflected in the Company's consolidated balance sheets
consist primarily of a deferred gain on the sale and leaseback of a European office building.

Minority Interesi: Effective October 1, 1999, the Company contributed operating and financial assets with a total net book
value of approximately $5,000,000 (including cash of $1,800,000) to Z/1 Imaging, a newly formed corporation which supplies
end-to-end photogrammetry solutions for front-end data collection to mapping related and engineering markets, in exchange
for 2 60% ownership interest in the new company. Additionally, Carl Zeiss B.V. (“Zeiss™) contributed assets and liabilities with a
net book value of approximately $4,000,000 (including cash of $11,732,000) to the new company in exchange for a 40% owner-
ship interest. During 2001, Zeiss made an additional contribution of approximately $119,000 in accordance with the formation
agreement relating to Z/1 GmbH. Z/1 imaging's assets, liabilities, and results of operations are included in the Company's
consolidated financial statements. Zeiss' minority interest in the earnings and equity of this subsidiary are reflected as “Minority
interest in earnings of consolidated subsidiaries” and “Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries,” respectively; in the
Company’s consolidated statements of operations and balance sheets for the periods subsequent to formation of Z/1 Imaging.
See Note 13 for a discussion of transactions between Z/1 Imaging and Zeiss during 2001, 2000, and fourth quarter 1999.

Treasury Stock: Treasury stock is accounted for by the cost method. Treasury stock activity for the three-year period ended
December 31, 2001, (consisting of stock option exercises, purchases of stock by employees under the Company’s stock purchase
plan, and the purchase of shares for the treasury) is presented in the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity.

On October 30, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved the purchase of up to $30,000,000 of its
outstanding common stock in the open market. The Plan may be suspended at any time after its commencement and will
terminate on December 31, 2002. The Company has no obligation to purchase any specific number of shares under the Plan.
As of December 31, 2001, the Company had purchased approximately $1,875,000 of its outstanding common stock under this
authorization, with the last purchase occurring in 2001.

Treasury stock purchases are restricted by the Company’s term loan and revolving credit agreement (see Note 8). The Company
has received written consent from its primary lender for purchases of stock under the October 2000 Board authorization.
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Revenue Recognition: 1n December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements (“SAB 1017), providing guidance on the recognition,
presentation, and disclosure of revenue in financial statements. SAB 101 outlines basic criteria that must be met prior to the
recognition of revenue, including persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement, delivery of products and performance of services,
a fixed and determinable sales price, and reasonable assurance of collection. For revenue recognition purposes, the Company
considers persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement to be receipt of a signed contract or purchase order.

SAB 101 became effective in fourth quarter 2000 for the Company. Upon implementation of SAB 101, the Company changed its
method of revenue recognition for certain of its product sales, specifically those for which transfer of title occurs upon delivery
to the customer. Historically, the Company has recognized revenues for its systems sales with no significant post-shipment
obligations upon shipment to the customer, with any post shipment costs accrued at that time. To comply with the provisions of
SAB 101, the Company now recognizes revenues on such sales based upon estimated delivery times, generally less than five days
after shipment, for the equipment and/or software shipped. This accounting change did not materially impact the Company’s
reported revenues and results of operations for the full year 2000.

Revenues on systems sales with significant post-shipment obligations, including the production, modification, or customization
of software, are recognized by the percentage-of-completion method, with progress to completion measured on the basis of
completion of milestones, labor costs incurred currently versus the total estimated labor cost of performing the contract over its
term, or other factors appropriate to the individual contract of sale. The total amount of revenues to be earned under contracts
accounted for by the percentage-of-completion method are generally fixed by contractual terms. The Company regularly
reviews its progress on these contracts and revises the estimated costs of fulfilling its obligations. Due to uncertainties inherent
in the estimation process, it is possible that completion costs will be further revised on some of these contracts, which could
delay revenue recognition and decrease the gross margin to be earned. Any losses identified in the review process are recog-
nized in full in the period in which determined.

Multiple element software sale arrangements are identified by the Company's contracts personnel and accounted for based
upon the relative fair value of each element. Revenue is not recognized on any element of a sale arrangement if undelivered
elements are essential to the functionality of delivered elements.

Revenues from certain contracts with the U.S. government, primarily cost-plus award fee contracts, are recognized monthly as
costs are incurred and fees are earned under the contracts.

Maintenance and services revenues are recognized ratably over the lives of the maintenance contracts or as services are performed.

Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling costs are classified as revenues in the consolidated statements of opera-
tions with the associated costs included as a component of cost of revenues.

Billings may not coincide with the recognition of revenue. Unbilled accounts receivable occur when revenue recognition precedes
billing to the customer, and arise primarily from commercial sales with predetermined hilling schedules, U1.S. government sales
with billing at the end of a performance period, and U.S. government cost-plus award fee contracts. Billings in excess of sales
occur when billing to the customer precedes revenue recognition, and arise primarily from maintenance revenue billed in advance
of performance of the maintenance activity and systems revenue recognized on the percentage-of-completion method.

Foreign Currency Exchange and Translation: Local currencies are the functional currencies for the Company's
European subsidiaries. The U.S. dollar was the functional currency for all other international subsidiaries in 2001; however,
the Company’s Canadian subsidiary changed its functional currency from the U.S. dollar to its local currency in January 2002.
The Company’s exit from the hardware business significantly changed the economic environment in which its Canadian
subsidiary operates as most of its cost of sales is no longer primarily in U.S. dollars. The Company expects the effect of the
change in functional currency on its financial statements to be insignificant. Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from
remeasurement or settlement of receivables and payables denominated in a currency other than the functional currency,
together with gains and losses and fees paid in connection with forward exchange contracts, are included in “Other income
(expense), net” in the consolidated statements of operations. Net exchange losses from continuing operations totaled
$1,500,000 in 2001, $3,900,000 in 2000, and $1,300,000 in 1999. Translation gains and losses resulting from translation of
subsidiaries’ financial statements from the functional currency into dollars for U.S. reporting purposes, and foreign currency
gains and losses resulting from remeasurement of intercompany advances of a long-term investment nature are included as a
component of “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” in the consolidated balance sheets.




Dertvative Financial Instruments: In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities (as amended), requiring companies to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and
to measure the instruments at fair value. This statement became effective for the Company in 2001.

The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies
as part of a hedging relationship, and on the type of hedging relationship involved. The designations for such derivative instru-
ments, based on the exposure being hedged, are fair value hedge, cash flow hedge, or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation. Any net results of effective hedging relationships are presented in the income statement line item associated with the
hedged item.

At December 31, 2001, and 2000, the Company had no freestanding derivatives, and these amounts were not significant at
December 31, 1999. See Note 5 for further details of the Company’s derivative financial instruments.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans: The Company maintains a stock purchase plan and two fixed stock option plans for
the benefit of its employees and directors. The Company accounts for these plans in accordance with the provisions of
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.

Under the stock purchase plan, employees purchase stock of the Company at 85% of the closing market price of the Company’s
stock as of the last pay date of each calendar month. No compensation expense is recognized for the difference in price paid by
employees and the fair market value of the Company’s stock at the date of purchase.

Under the fixed stock option plans, stock options may be granted to employees and directors at exercise prices which are equal
to, less than, or greater than the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant. Compensation expense, equal to
the difference in exercise price and fair market value on the date of grant, is recognized over the vesting period for options
granted at less than fair market value.

In accordance with the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 1237), the
Company has provided pro forma information reflecting results of operations and earnings (loss) per share had compensation
expense been recognized for employee stock purchases and for stock options granted at or above market value on the date of
grant (see Note 10).

Income Taxes: The provision for income taxes includes federal, international, and state income taxes currently payable or
refundable and income taxes deferred because of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets
and liabilities (see Note 9).

Net Income (Loss) Per Share: Basic income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and
equivalent common shares outstanding. Employee stock options are the Company’s only common stock equivalent and are
included in the calculation only if dilutive. For the years ended December 31, 2001, and 2000, these dilutive shares were
2,042,000 and 487,000, respectively (see Note 10).

Comprebensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income (loss) as well as all other non-
owner changes in equity. With respect to the Company, such non-owner equity items include foreign currency translation
adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on certain investments in debt and equity securities. The Company’s comprehen-
sive income or loss for each year in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, is displayed in the consolidated statements
of shareholders’ equity Accumulated other comprehensive loss at the end of each of these three years consisted of foreign
currency translation adjustments, and for December 31, 2001, and 2000, included unrealized holding losses of $3,287,000 and
$7,939,000, respectively, on investments primarily related to its common stock holdings of 3Dkabs (see Notes 13 and 15). There
was no income tax effect related to the items included in other comprehensive income or loss for any year in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2001. See Note 9 for details of the Company’s tax position, including its net operating loss carryfor-
wards and policy for reinvestment of subsidiary earnings.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to the previously reported consolidated statements of operations
and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2000, and 1999 to provide comparability with the current year presentation.
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Note ¢ — Litigation and Other Risks and Uncertainties

In addition to the items described in Notes 1, 5, 7, 8, 12, and 15, the Company has certain other risks related to its business and
economic environment and continues its ongoing litigation with Intel Corporation, as further described in “Litigation and
Other Risks and Uncertainties” included in MD&A.

Note 3 — Reorganization Charges

In 2001, the Company reversed severance liabilities of $384,000 for the 2000 reorganization plan. The Company recorded
reorganization charges to continuing results of operations totaling $13,239,000 in 2000 (including inventory write-downs reflected
in “Cost of revenues - Systems" and “Cost of revenues - Maintenance” of $4,531,000 and $210,000, respectively) and $22,596,000
in 1999 (including a $7,000,000 inventory write-down recorded as a component of “Cost of revenues - Systems”). For a complete
description of these charges, see “Reorganization Charges” included in MD&A. '

Note 4 — Discontinued Operation

On October 31, 1999, the Company sold its VeriBest, Inc. business segment to Mentor Graphics Corporation, a global provider of
electronic hardware and software design solutions and consulting services, for approximately §11,000,000, primarily in the
form of cash received at closing. The resulting gain on this transaction of $14,384,000 is reflected in “Gain on sale of discontin-
ued operation, net of income taxes” in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 1999, and in
“Gains on sales of assets” in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the same period.

The Company’s consolidated statement of operations reflects VeriBest’s business as a discontinued operation for the period in
1999 prior to its sale. The discontinued operation has not been presented separately in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Other than its operating loss for the period presented, the discontinued operation did not have a significant impact on
the Company’s consolidated cash flow or financial position.

Summarized VeriBest financial information for 1999 prior to its sale is presented below. For this presentation, VeriBest’s operat-
ing and net losses have been adjusted to exclude the impact of intercompany revenue and expense items.

Year Ended December 31, ‘ 1999
(tn thousands)

Revenues from unaffiliated customers $23,704
Operating loss before reorganization charges (6,469)
Reorganization charges 871
Net loss (7,400)
Note 5 — Financial Instruments

Information related to the Company’s financial instruments, other than cash equivalents and stock investments in less than
50%-owned companies, is summarized below.

Short- and Long-Tern Debt: The balance sheet carrying amounts of the Company's floating rate debt (approximately
$3,668,000 at December 31, 2001), primarily its seven-year term loan and revolving credit agreement, and a European
mortgage (see Note 8), approximate fair market values since interest rates on the debt adjust periodically to reflect changes in
market rates of interest. The Company is exposed to market risk of future increases in interest rates on these loans. The carry-
ing amounts of fixed rate debt approximate fair market values based on current interest rates for debt of the same remaining
maturities and character.

Convertible Debenture: As part of the proceeds of the April 1999 sale of its TnterCAP subsidiary to Micrografx, Inc. (see
Note 15), the Company received a $5,797,000 convertible subordinated debenture due on March 31, 2002. In the fourth quarter
0f 2000, the Company recorded a $5,000,000 write-down of the value of this debenture due to financial and operational difficul-
ties being experienced by Micrografx. The Company wrote off the remaining $797,000 of the debenture in the first quarter of
2001, to reflect the continuing financial and operational difficulties being experienced by Micrografx. The 2001 and 2000 write-
offs are included in “Other income (expense), net” in the 2001 and 2000 consolidated statements of operations, respectively.




On October 31, 2001, Corel Corporation (“Corel”), an Ottawa, Canada-based software company, purchased Micrografx. In
order to facilitate this purchase, the Company agreed to accept $3,797,000, plus accrued interest of $485,000, for complete
settlement of its convertible subordinated debenture. The $3,797,000, plus accrued interest, is recorded as a component of
“Other income (expense), net” in the 2001 consolidated statement of operations.

Stock Warrant: As part of the proceeds of the October 1999 sale of its VeriBest business segment (see Note 4), the Company
received a warrant to purchase 500,000 shares of the common stock of Mentor Graphics at a price of $15 per share. The Company
sold the warrant to Mentor Graphics for $2,000,000 in October 2001. A gain of $1,700,000 was recognized on the sale and is
recorded as a component of “Other income (expense), net” in the 2001 consolidated statement of operations. At December 31,
2000, the Company’s $300,000 estimated value of the warrant was included in “Investments in affiliates” in the consolidated
balance sheet. This value was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model as of the date of sale of VeriBest.

Forward Exchange Congracts: At December 31,2001, and 2000, the Company had no forward exchange contracts
outstanding. The Company currently is not hedging any of its foreign currency risks.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement: In 1996, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement in the principal
amount of its Australian term loan agreement. In June 2000, the Company repaid substantially the entire amount of its
Australian term loan and terminated the related interest rate swap agreement. The agreement was for a period of approxi-
mately six years, and its expiration date coincided with that of the term loan. Under the agreement, the Company paid 2 9.18%
fixed rate of interest and received payment based on a variable rate of interest. The weighted average receive rate of the interest
rate swap agreement at December 31, 1999, was 5.84% and the fair market value of the agreement on that date was approxi-
mately $300,000. This value was determined by obtaining a bank quote, and represented the amount the Company would have
paid if it had transferred its obligation under the instrument to & third party on that date. The actual cost to terminate the swap
in June 2000 was approximately $§160,000. Cash requirements of the agreement were limited to the differential between the
fixed rate of interest paid and the variable rate received.

Note 6 — Supplementary Cash Flow Information

Changes in current assets and liabilities, net of the effects of business acquisitions, divestitures, and reorganization charges, in
reconciling net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operations are as follows:

Cash Provided By (Used For) Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
(in thousands)
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable $ 16,757 $67,134 $47 418
Inventories 352 9,837 3,994
Other current assets 8,287 (2,239) 7,189
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade accounts payable (11,690) (14,470) (17,194)
Accrued compensation and other accrued expenses (18,940) (10,770) (11,433)
Income taxes payable 2,425 3,015 1,876
Billings in excess of sales (7,645) (16,392) (3,597)
Net changes in current assets and liabilities $(10,454) $36,115 $28,253

Cash payments for income taxes totaled approximately $3,300,000, $8,800,000, and $9,300,000 in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respec-
tively Cash payments for interest in those years totaled approximately $2,000,000, $4,100,000, and §5,700,000, respectively.

Significant non-cash investing and financing transactions in 2001 included the receipt of common stock with a value of
approximately $10,000,000 as additional consideration (and in satisfaction of the receivable included in the December 31, 2000,
consolidated balance sheet) for the third quarter 2000 sale of the Company’s Intense3D graphics accelerator division, offset by a
$2,695,000 unfavorable mark-to-market adjustment. The mark-to-market adjustment is included in “Accumulated other
comprehensive loss” in the December 31, 2001, consolidated balance sheet. Also included in 2001 is a $10,100,000 increase to a
note receivable as additional consideration for the fourth quarter 2000 sale of its civil, plotting, and raster product lines.
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Significant non-cash investing and financing transactions in 2000 included the termination of a long-term lease on one of the
Company’s facilities. The Company accounted for this lease as a financing lease and, upon termination, long-term debt of
$8,300,000 and property; plant, and equipment of $6,500,000 were removed from the Company’s books. Also during 2000, the
Company’s Intense3D graphics accelerator division was sold for initial consideration of $11,248,000 paid in common stock of the
acquirer and a receivable of $8,550,000 (included in “Other current assets” in the December 31, 2000, consolidated balance sheet)
for additional consideration earned through the end of 2000. During the second half of 2000, a §7,911,000 unfavorable mark-to-
market adjustment was recorded on the stock received in this transaction and is included in “Accumulated other comprehensive
loss” in the December 31, 2000, consolidated balance sheet. Other significant non-cash investing and financing transactions in
2000 included the sales of product lines and a subsidiary in part for long-term notes receivable totaling approximately $13,700,000.

Investing and financing transactions in 1999 that did not require cash included the acquisition of 2 business in part for future
obligations totaling approximately $3,300,000 and the sale of a subsidiary company in part for a convertible subordinated
debenture with an original value of $5,797,000.

See Notes 13 and 15 for further details regarding the Company’s acquisitions and divestitures during the three-year period
ended December 31, 2001.

Note 7 — Accounts Receivable

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are limited due to the diversity of the Company’s customer
base. The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and generally does not require
collateral. During the three years ended December 31, 2001, the Company experienced no significant losses related to trade
receivables from individual customers or from groups of customers in any geographic area.

Revenues from the U.S. government were approximately $143,000,000, $132,400,000, and $149,300,000 in 2001, 2000, and 1999,
respectively, representing approximately 27% of total revenue in 2001, and 19% and 16% of total revenue in 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Accounts receivable from the U.S. government totaled approximately $27,700,000 and $28,400,000 at December 31,
2001, and 2000, respectively. The Company sells to the U.S. government under long-term contractual arrangements, primarily
indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity and cost-based contracts, and through sales of commercial products not covered by long-
term contracts. Approximately 69% of the Company’s 2001 federal government revenues was earned under long-term contracts.
The Company believes its relationship with the federal government to be good. While it is fully anticipated that these contracts
will remain in effect through their expiration, the contracts are subject to termination at the election of the government. Any loss
of a significant government contract would have an adverse impact on the results of operations of the Gompany

Accounts receivable include unbilled amounts of $50,700,000 and $48,300,000 at December 31, 2001, and 2000, respectively
These amounts include amounts due under long-term contracts of approximately $33,400,000 and $24,700,000 at December
31,2001, and 2000, respectively. Accounts receivable also include retainages of approximately $5,075,000 and $4,861,000 at
December 31, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

The Company maintained reserves for uncollectible accounts, included in “Accounts receivable” in the consolidated balance
sheets at December 31, 2001, and 2000, of $13,000,000 and $18,200,000, respectively.

Note 8 — Debt and Leases

Short- and long-term debt is summarized as follows;

December 31, 2001 2000
(In thousands)

Revolving credit agreement and term loan $ 424 $19,344
Australian term loan 255 278
Long-term mortgages 826 7,800
Other secured debt 65 1,417
Short-term credit facilities 2,163 2,191
Total debt 3,733 31,030
Less amounts payable within one year 2,619 5,765
Total long-term debt $1,114 $25,265




In 2001, the Company reduced total debt by $27.3 million. Term debt outstanding at December 31, 2001, matures as follows:
approximately $2,619,000 in 2002, $350,000 in 2003, $223,000 in 2004, $130,000 in 2005, $138,000 in 2006, and $273,000
thereafter.

Under the Company’s January 1997 seven-year fixed term loan and revolving credit agreement (as amended), available
borrowings are determined by the amounts of eligible assets of the Company (the “borrowing base”), as defined in the agree-
ment, primarily accounts receivable, with maximum availability of $50 million. At December 31, 2001, the borrowing base,
representing the maximum available credit under the line, was $50 million, of which $10.9 million was allocated to support the
Company’s letters of credit. In 2001, the Company paid $17.8 million of the term loan with existing cash balances and proceeds
received from the sales of assets. 1n September 2000, the Company paid §7.1 million of the term loan with proceeds received
from the sale of several idle office buildings. At December 31,2001, the Company had outstanding borrowings of $424,000
under this agreement, the $100,000 term loan portion of which was classified as long-term debt in the consolidated balance
sheet. The term loan is due at expiration of the agreement.

Borrowings are secured by a pledge of substantially all of the Company’s U.S. assets and certain international receivables. The
rate of interest on all borrowings under the agreement is the greater of 6.5% or the Wells Fargo base rate of interest (4.75% at
December 31, 2001) plus .125%. There are provisions in the agreement which lower the interest rate upon achievement of
sustained profitability by the Company, but only to the minimum interest rate of 6.5%. The average effective rate of interest for
2001 was 7.6% (10% in 2000). The agreement requires the Company to pay a facility fee at an annual rate of .15% of the
amount available under the credit line, an unused credit line fee at an annual rate of .20% of the average unused portion of the
revolving credit line, a letter of credit fee at an annual rate of .75% of the undrawn amount of all outstanding letters of credit,
and a monthly agency fee. An amendment was executed on August 1, 2001, that extends the current agreement until January
2004, allows pay-down of the term loan portion of the line, and lowers the facility to $50 million, which will provide for annual
savings of approximately $650,000 to the Company,

The term loan and revolving credit agreement contains certain financial covenants of the Company, including minimum net
worth, minimum current ratio, and maximum levels of capital expenditures, and restrictive covenants that limit or prevent
various business transactions (including purchases of the Company’s stock, dividend payments, mergers, acquisitions of or
investments in other businesses, and disposal of assets including individual businesses, subsidiaries, and divisions) and limit or
prevent certain other business changes without approval. The Company’s net worth covenant was increased to $250 million,
effective August 1, 2001.

The Company has a long-term mortgage on its office building in the United Kingdom, payable in monthly installments through
December 2009. The outstanding principal on the mortgage was $826,000 at December 31, 2001 ($7,800,000 at December 31,
2000). The mortgage bears interest at the United Kingdom base rate plus 1%. Rates paid on this mortgage ranged from 5%

10 7% in 2001 (6.5% to 7% in 2000).

See Note 5 for discussion of the fair values of the Company’s debt.

The Company leases various property, plant, and equipment under operating leases as lessee. Rental expense for operating
leases was approximately $18,298,000 in 2001, $21,600,000 in 2000, and $25,100,000 in 1999. Subleases and contingent rentals
are not significant. Future minimum lease payments, by year and in the aggregate, under noncancelable operating leases with
initial or remaining terms of one year or more are as follows:

Operating
Lease Comnmiiments

(In thousands)

2002 $12,197
2003 8,788
2004 5,758
2005 4,215
2006 3,040
Thereafter 23822
Total future minimum lease payments $58 420
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Note 9 — Income Taxes

The components of income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest are as follows:

Yewr Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
U.S. $18,010 $14,138 $(67,733)
International 10,908 5,088 (4,725)
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and minority interest $28,918 $19.226 $(72,458)
Income tax benefit (expense) from continuing operations consists of the following: |
Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Current benefit (expense):
Federal $(2,008) $(3,330) $ (1,23%)
State (387) (597) 273)
International (6,028) (3,430) (4,128)
Total current (8,423) (7.357) (5,634)
Deferred benefit (expense):
Federal (103) 389 163
State ) 38 16
International 35 330 (49)
Total deferred 7 757 134
Total income tax expense $(8,500) $(6,600) $ (5,500)

Deferred income taxes included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets reflect the net tax effects of temporary differ-
ences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the carrying amounts for
income tax return purposes. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2001 2000
(I thousands)
Current Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities): ‘
Inventory reserves $5,310 $ 17,218
Vacation pay and other employee benefit accruals 5,619 4,996
Other financial statement reserves, primarily
allowances for doubtful accounts and warranty 9,801 15,790
Profit on uncompleted sales contracts (1,220) 754
Other current tax assets and liabilities, net 261 507
19,771 39,265
Less asset valuation allowance (16,742) (32,127)
Total net current asset (7) 3,029 7,138
Noncurrent Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities):
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards:
U.S. federal and state 86,096 58,297
International operations 19,955 27,963
Depreciation (5,595) (5,530
Capitalized software development costs (8,173) (7,628)
Other noncurrent tax assets and liabilities, net (191) (2,478)
92,092 70,624
Less asset valuation allowance (94,665) (77,228)
Total net noncurrent liability (2,573) (6,604)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) § 456 § 53

(1) Included in "Other current asseis” in the consolidated balance sheets.




The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, which consists primarily of reserves against the tax benefit of net operating loss
carryforwards, increased by §2,052,000 in 2001 due to decreases in deferred tax assets of 17,739,000 arising from changes in
deductible temporary differences, and by increases of $19,791,000 in the benefit from net operating loss carryforwards. If

realized, these reserved tax benefits will be applied to reduce income tax expense in the year of realization.

Net operating loss carryforwards are available to offset future earnings within the time periods specified by law. At December
31, 2001, the Company had a U.S. federal net operating loss carryforward of approximately $205,596,000 expiring from 2009
through 2021. International net operating loss carryforwards total approximately $60,000,000 and expire as follows:

International
Net Operating Loss

December 31, 2001 Carryforwards
(In thotisands)
Expiration:
3 years or less $14,000
4105 years 6,000
610 10 years 1,400
Unlimited carryforward 38,600
Total $60,000

Additionally, the Company has $2,400,000 of U.S. alternative minimum tax credit carryforward which has no expiration date.
U.S. research and development tax credit carryforwards of §7,800,000 are available to offset regular tax liability through 2012.

A reconciliation from income tax benefit (expense) at the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 35% to the Company's income tax
expense from continuing operations is presented below. There was no material income tax benefit or expense related to the
Company’s discontinued operation.

Yeay Ended December 31, 2091 2000 1999
(in thousands)

Income tax benefit (expense) at federal statutory rate $(10,121) $(6,729) $ 25,360
Tax effects of international operations, net (1,844) (5,667) (10,417)
Tax effect of U.S. tax loss carried forward 2,619 8,056 (20,607)
Prior year taxes —_ (311) (762)
Other, net 846 (1,949) 926
Income tax expense $ (8,500) $(6,600) $ (5,500)

The Company does not provide for federal income taxes or tax benefits on the undistributed earnings or losses of its interna-
tional subsidiaries because earnings are reinvested and, in the opinion of management, will continue to be reinvested
indefinitely. At December 31,2001, the Company had not provided federal income taxes on earnings of individual international
subsidiaries of approximately $33,500,000. Should these earnings be distributed in the form of dividends or otherwise, the
Company would be subject to both U.S. income taxes and withholding taxes in various international jurisdictions.
Determination of the related amount of unrecognized deferred U.S. income tax liability is not practicable because of the
complexities associated with its hypothetical calculation. Withholding taxes of approximately $2,100,000 would be payable if all
previously unremitted earnings as of December 31, 2001, were remitted to the U.S. company.

Note 10 — Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Intergraph Corporation 1997 Stock Option Plan was approved by shareholders in May 1997. Under this plan, the Company
reserved a total of 5,000,000 shares of common stock to grant as options to key employees. Options may be granted at exercise
prices which are equal to, less than, or greater than the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant. Qptions
are granted for a term of ten years from the date of grant. Options first become exercisable two years from the date of grant and
vest at a rate of 25% per year from that point, with full vesting on the fifth anniversary date of the grant. Options to purchase
245,000, 2,770,000, and 216,000 shares of the Company’s common stock were granted in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively,
under this plan. At December 31, 2001, 541,562 shares were available for future grants.
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The Intergraph Corporation Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan was approved by shareholders in May 1998. The
Company has reserved a total of 250,000 shares of common stock to grant as options under this plan, The exercise price of
each option granted is the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant. Options are granted for a term of ten
years from the date of grant. Options first become exercisable one year from the date of grant and vest at a rate of 33% per year
from that point, with full vesting on the third anniversary date of the grant. Upon approval of this plan, members of the Board
who were not otherwise employed by the Company were granted options to purchase 3,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock. Any new non-employee director is similarly granted an option to purchase 3,000 shares of common stock upon his ot
her first election to the Board. At each annual meeting of shareholders, each non-employee director re-elected to the Board is
granted an option to purchase an additional 1,500 shares of the Company’s common stock. Options to purchase 9,000, 9,000,
and 4,500 shares of the Company's common stock were granted in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively, under this plan. At
December 31, 2001, 215,500 shares were available for future grants.

Under the 2000 Intergraph Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plag, 3,000,000 shares of common stock were made avail-
able for purchase through a series of five consecutive annual offerings each June beginning June 1, 2000. In order to purchase
stock, each participant may have up to 10% of his or her pay (not to exceed $25,000 in any offering period) withheld through
payroll deductions. All full-time employees of the Company are eligible to participate. The purchase price of each share is 85%
of the closing market price of the Company’s common stock on the last pay date of each calendar month. Employees
purchased 147,478, 305,447, and 557,713 shares of stock in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively, under the 2000 and predecessor
plans. At December 31,2001, 2,686,169 shares were available for future purchases.

As allowed under the provisions of SFAS 123, the Company has elected to apply APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations in accounting for its stock-based plans. Accordingly; the Company has
recognized no compensation expense for these plans during the three-year period ended December 31,2001, Had the
Company accounted for its stock-based compensation plans based on the fair value of awards at grant date consistent with the
methodology of SFAS 123, the Company’s reported net income (loss) and income (loss) per share for each of the three years
would have been impacted as indicated below. The effects of applying SFAS 123 on a pro forma basis for the three-year period
ended December 31, 2001, are not likely to be representative of the effects on reported pro forma net income (loss) for future
years as options vest over several years and as it is anticipated that additional grants will be made in future years.

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Net income (loss) As reported $19,942 $10,095 $(71,577)
Pro forma 16,624 7,400 (74,018)

Diluted income (loss) per share As reported 39 20 (1.46)
Pro forma 32 15 (1.51)

Under the methodology of SFAS 123, the fair value of the Company’s fixed stock options was estimated at the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The multiple option approach was used, with assumptions for expected option
life of 1.09 years after vest date in 2001 (1.38 vears in 2000 and 1999) and 73% expected volatility for the market price of the
Company’s stock in 2001 (60% in 2000 and 48% in 1999). Dividend vield is excluded from the calculation since it is the present
policy of the Company to retain all earnings to finance operations. Risk-free rates of return were determined separately for
each of the serial vesting periods of the options and ranged from 3.32% to 4.57% in 2001, 6.03% to 6.37% in 2000, and 5.64% to
6.07% in 1999.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including expected stock price volatility. Because the Company's employee stock options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because the subjectivity of assumptions can materially affect estimates
of fair value, the Company believes the Black-Scholes model does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair
value of its employee stock options.

Shares issued under the Company’s stock purchase plan were valued at the difference between the market value of the stock
and the discounted purchase price of the shares on the date of purchase. The date of grant and the date of purchase coincide
for this plan.




The weighted average grant date fair values of options granted to employees under the 1997 and Nonemployee Director stock
option plans during 2001, 2000, and 1999 were $6.92, $3.14, and $2.49, respectively. During 2001, options were granted under
these plans at exercise prices equal to the market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant.

Activity in the Company’s fixed stock option plans for each year in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, is summa-
rized as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Shares  Exercise Price Shares  Exercise Price Shares  Exercise Price
Outstanding at
beginning of year 5,453,510 $ 6.29 3,550,296 $7.46 3587173 §7.63
Granted:
Price equal to
market value 254,000 11.81 2,744,000 5.57 220,500 517
Price less than
market value — — 25,000 5.56 — —
Price greater than
market value — — 10,000 5.56 — —
Exercised (344,555) 6.85 (3,250) 5.38 (16,750) 127
Forfeited (727,562) 6.85 (872,536) 8.77 (240,627) 8.34
Outstanding at end of year 4,635,393 $ 6.44 5453510 $6.29 3,550,296 $ 746
Exercisable at end of year 1,112,337 $7.88 1,223,023 $8.62 1,044,111 $10.22

Further information relating to stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001, is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average  Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Prices Number  Contractual Life  Exercise Price  Number Exercise Price
$5.063 to $ 5813 3,685,960 7.88 years $ 549 509,210 $ 537
5875 to  9.000 314,183 5.54 years 777 208,127 8.06
9250 to 14.000 635,250 5.87 years 1131 305,000 11.00
4,635,393 7.45 years $ 6.44 1,112,337 $ 7.88

Options exercised during 1999 with a weighted average exercise price of $1.27 per share were granted in 1995 as the result of a
business acquisition in which the Company assumed the total shares and price obligations under the acquired company’s stock
option plans. As of December 31, 1999, all of the options assumed as a result of this business acquisition were either exercised
or cancelled.

Note 11 — Employee Benefit Plans

The Intergraph Corporation Stock Bonus Plan was established in 1975 to provide retirement benefits to substantially all U.S.
employees. Effective January 1, 1987, the Company amended the Plan to qualify it as an employee stock ownership plan
(ESOP). The Company made contributions to the Plan in amounts determined at the discretion of the Board, and the contri-
butions were funded with Company stock. Amounts were allocated to the accounts of participants based on compensation.
Benefits are payable to participants subject to the vesting provisions of the Plan. The Company has not made a contribution to
the Plan since 1992,

On December 5, 2000, the Board resolved to terminate the Stock Bonus Plan effective for the plan year ending December 31,
2000, and to amend the SavingsPlus Plan to permit the Company to make discretionary profit sharing contributions to it. As part
of the termination process, the Company applied to the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) and the SEC in April 2001 for deter-
mination of the Stock Bonus Plan’s tax qualified status on termination, and for confirmation that the special stock buy-back
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provisions comply with federal securities laws. In November 2001, the Company was contacted by the IRS and the SEC request-

ing additional information in order to complete their reviews, and the Company has responded to those requests. Upon receipt
of favorable responses from the IRS and SEC, each Plan participant will be entitled to receive a lump sum distribution of his or
her account balance (subject to income tax liability and withholdings), or to rollover the account balance into an Individual
Retirement Account or other qualified plan. As of December 31, 2001, there were 9,471 participants with account balances in
the Stock Bonus Plan, with ownership of approximately 4,593,000 shares of Intergraph common stock.
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In 1990, the Company established the Intergraph Corporation SavingsPlus Plan, an employee savings plan qualified under
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, covering substantially all U.S. employees. As of January 1, 2002, employees may
elect to contribute up to 25% of their compensation to the Plan. In 2001, the limit was 15%. The Company matches 50% of
employee contributions up to 6% of each employee’s compensation. Cash contributions by the Company to the Plan were
$2,584,000, $3,382,000, and $4,143,000 in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

The Company maintains various retirement benefit plans for the employees of its international subsidiaries, primarily defined
contribution plans that cover substantially all employees. Contributions to the plans are made in cash and are allocated to the
accounts of participants based on compensation. Benefits are payable based on vesting provisions contained in each plan. The
Company's contributions to these plans totaled approximately $2,988,000, $2,400,000, and $2,900,000 in 2001, 2000, and
1999, respectively.

Note 12 — Segment Information

The year 2000 was a transitional year for the Company, during which it focused its efforts on organizing the Company into five
business segments. The Company substantially completed the U.S. portion of this process in third quarter 2000, and the inter-
national portion was completed in the first quarter of 2001. The segment presentation below provides business segment
information based on the Company’s new business structure for 2001 and 2000. Segment information is also presented based
on the Company’s previous segment structure for 2000 and 1999. The Company is unable to restate current year data into the
previous segment structure and 1999 data into the current segment structure to provide comparability, as this would be imprac-
ticable, and would involve excessive cost and require extensive estimations. One segment, Z/I Imaging, did not change as a
result of the new structure. Information reported for previous years is comparable to the new presentation, though 1999
includes only three months of activity for Z/1 Imaging as the subsidiary was formed on October 1, 1999.

The Company’s reportable segments are strategic business units which are organized by the types of products sold and the
specific markets served. The Company evaluates performance of the business segments based on revenue and income (loss)
from operations. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are consistent across segments and are the same as those
described for the Company as a whole in Note 1. Sales between the business segments, the most significant of which are associ-
ated with hardware maintenance services provided by IGS and Corporate to other business segments, are accounted for under a
transfer pricing policy Transfer prices approximate prices that would be charged for the same or similar property to similarly
situated unrelated buyers.

Current Segments: The Company's 2001 business segments consist of IGS, IMGS, PP&0, IPS, and Z/1 Imaging. The
Company's Middle East operations (“Mid World”), portions of which were sold in April 2001 and July 2001 (with the antici-
pated sale of the remaining portion expected to close during the first quarter of 2002), are also included as a segment on 2
temporary basis (see Note 15). As noted above, the international portion of the process was completed during first quarter
2001. As aresult, the International Distribution operation, presented as a temporary segment in 2000, was absorbed into the
other business segments for 2001. Segment data for 2000 was restated to include the International Distribution operation in the
appropriate segment.

1GS provides specially developed software and hardware, commercial off-the-shelf products, and professional services to
federal, state, and local governments worldwide, as well as to commercial customers. Amounts presented for 2001 and 2000 for
the IGS business segment include the previously reported federal operations of 1GS, as well as domestic operations for the trans-
portation industry, previously included in the Intergraph Software business segment. The amounts for the new IGS exclude the
mapping organization, previously included in the IGS business segment, which is now included in IMGS. Additionally,
hardware maintenance and network services, previously included in the Intergraph Computer Systems (*ICS”) business unit,
are consolidated into IGS for 2001 and 2000 presentation.



IMGS develops, markets, and supports geospatial solutions for business GIS, land records management, rail transportation,
environmental management, utilities and communications companies, and commercial map production. Amounts presented
for 2001 and 2000 below include the domestic and international operations for both the federal and commercial mapping
organizations. The results for these organizations were included in prior years in the IGS and Intergraph Software business
segments, respectively.

PP&O supplies software and services to the process, power, and offshore petroleum industries. Amounts presented for PP&0
below represent the Company’s complete domestic and international operations for this business. These amounts were previ-
ously included in the Intergraph Software business segment.

IPS develops, markets, and implements systems for the public safety, utilities, and communications markets. IPS includes the
domestic and international public safety and utilities and communications operations. The new presentation differs from the
previous presentation due to the inclusion of international utilities in the new presentation. These amounts were previously
included in the Intergraph Software segment.

Z/1 Imaging, a 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company formed October 1, 1999, supplies end-to-end photogrammetry solutions
for front-end data collection to mapping-related and engineering markets. Amounts presented include all domestic and inter-
national operations and are consistent between 2001, 2000, and 1999.

ICS included the domestic and international operations of the Company’s hardware division prior to its third quarter 2000
closure, although some residual activity occurred in the fourth quarter, primarily for sales of remaining inventories. [nformation
presented for 2000 is not comparable to prior years’ information as it excludes the Company’s ongoing hardware maintenance
and network services operations which are now a part of IGS. 2000 is the last year for presentation of ICS as a business segment.
Going forward, the only hardware sold by the Company will be purchased by the business segments from third-party vendors,
and such purchases and resales will be included in the results of operations of the applicable business segments.

The [nternational Distribution operation included international operations for information technology, mapping and GIS
solutions, utilities and communications, transportation, and international corporate expenses. These operations were previ-
ously reflected in the Intergraph Software business segment and are now included in the appropriate business segments.

Amounts included in the “Corporate” category in 2001 and 2000 include revenues and costs related to international hardware,
previously included in the Intergraph Software segment, and Teranetix, previously included in the ICS segment. Operating
expenses for both segment presentations consist of general corporate expenses, primarily general and administrative expenses
remaining after charges to the business segments based on segment usage of administrative services.
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The following table sets forth revenues and operating income (loss) before reorganization charges for the Company’s 2001 and
2000 reportable segments, together with supplementary information related to depreciation and amortization expense attribut-
able to the business segments,

Year Ended December 31, 2067 2000
(In thousands)
Revenwes:
1GS:
Unaffiliated customers $127,492 $143,587
Intersegment revenues 6,646 15,912
134,138 159,499
IMGS:
Unaffiliated customers 128,529 145,209
Intersegment revenues 8,253 15,719
136,782 160,928
PP&O:
Unaffiliated customers 110,915 114,663
[ntersegment revenues 5,563 9,007
116,478 123,670
IPS:
Unaffiliated customers 115,624 127,517
Intersegment revenues 220 423
115,844 127,940
Z/11maging:
Unaffiliated customers 28,042 28,193
[ntersegment revenues 10,594 15,219
38,636 43412
ICS:
Unaffiliated customers — 89,176
Intersegment revenues -— 27,206
—_ 116,382
MidWorld:
Unaffiliated customers 11,813 21,883
Intersegment revenues —_— -
11,813 21,883
Corporate:
Unaffiliated customers 9,646 20,226
Intersegment revenues 12,342 26,459
21,988 46,685
575,679 800,399
Eliminations (43,618) (109,945)
Total revenues $532,061 $690,454
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Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Operating income (loss) before reorganization charges:

I1GS $10,004 $ 13,824
IMGS 5,090 4492
PP&0O 6,799 9,899
IPS 5,319 1,385
Z/1 lmaging 4,492 9217
ICS (1) — (17,145)
MidWorld (3,318) (1,410)
Corporate (20,099) (35,405)
Eliminations (575) —
Total $ 7,703 $(15,143)

(1) ICS operating losses for 2000 include charges for an inventory write-down of $4,700,000, incurred in connection with the
reorganization and eventual closure of the business segment (see Note 3).

Year Ended December 31, 2061 2000
(In thousands)
Depreciation and ameortization expense:
1GS $ 1,323 $ 2,690
IMGS 1,927 5,440
PP&O 8,179 9,607
IPS 5,288 5,661
7/1 Imaging 1,220 567
ICS _ 2,488
MidWorld 162 228
Corparate 8,185 7,205
Total depreciation and amortization

expense from continuing operations $26,224 $ 33,886

Previous Segments: Prior to third quarter 2000, the Company’s business segments consisted of 1CS, 1PS, the Intergraph
Software and I1GS businesses (collectively, “Intergraph”), and Z/1 Imaging. Effective October 31, 1999, the Company sold its
VeriBest business segment, and accordingly its operating results are reflected in “Loss from discontinued operation, net of
income taxes” in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations for 1999. A complete description of this transaction and
its impact on the Company's results of operations and financial position, including summarized financial information for the
year ended December 31, 1999, is included in Note 4.

1CS supplied high performance Windows NT-based graphics workstations, 3D graphics subsystems, and solutions, including
hardware maintenance and network services. Intergraph supplied software and solutions, including hardware purchased from
ICS, consulting, and services to the process and building and infrastructure industries, and provided services and specialized
engineering and information technology to support federal government programs. Prior to the October 1999 formation of Z/1
Imaging (see Note 1), the Intergraph portion of the Z/I Imaging business was included in the Intergraph Software business
segment. The Company is unable to quantify the related revenues and operating income for the first nine months of 1999, but
believes they were insignificant to the Software segment as a whole.

Effective January 1, 1999, the domestic utilities business of Intergraph Software was merged into IPS. Additionally, in 1999,
hardware maintenance revenues, previously attributed exclusively to ICS, were allocated to the selling segment entities with [CS
recejving transfer price revenue for its indirect sales.

The following table sets forth revenues and operating income (loss) before reorganization charges for the Company's previous
business segments for the two-year period ended December 31, 2000, together with supplementary information related to
depreciation and amortization expense attributable to the business segments. Differences between the information provided in
this table and that provided for the current business segments are the result of the reorganization described under “Current
Segments” above, and the Company considers the new segment information to be determinative.
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Year Ended December 31, 2000 1999

(In thousands)
Revenues:
ICS: :
Unaffiliated customers $109,099 $214.476
Intersegment revenues 45,890 117,031
154,989 332,107
IPS:
Unaffiliated customers 80,457 84,932
Intersegment revenues 10,151 11,333
90,608 96,265
Intergraph Software:
Unaffiliated customers 333,162 455551
Intersegment revenues 5,414 13,860
338,576 469,411
IGS:
Unaffiliated customers 139,549 152,980
Intersegment revenues 4,457 6,817
144,006 159,797
Z/1 Imaging:
Unaffiliated customers 28,187 6,941
Intersegment revenues 15,225 2,309
43 412 9,750
771,591 1,067,330
Eliminations 81,137) (152,450)
Total revenues $690,454 $914,880
Tear Ended December 21, 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Operating income (loss) befere reorganization charges:
1Cs 2) $(18,895) $(44,808)
IPS 5,309 10,759
Intergraph Software 8,594 7,285
1G8 3,643 12,371
Z/1 Imaging 9,217 1872
Corporate (23,011) (39,323)
Total $(15,143) $(51,844)

2) ICS operating losses for 2000 and 1999 include charges for inventory write-downs of $4,700,000 and §7,000,000,
respectively, incurred in connection with the reorganization and eventual closure of the business segment. (See Note 3.)

Year Ended December 31, 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Depreciation and amortization expense:
Ics § 2840 $ 5239
1PS 5,661 5915
Intergraph Software 20,571 28,818
1GS 2814 2,886
7/ Imaging 567 55
Corporate 1,433 2,180
Total depreciation and amortization

expense from continuing operations $ 33,886 § 45,093
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Significant profit and loss items that were not allocated to the segments and not included in either the “Current Segments” or
“Previous Segments” analyses above include reorganization charges (credits) of (§384,000), $8,498,000, and $15,596,000 in
2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively, gains on sales of assets of $11,243,000, $49,546,000, and $13,223,000 in the three respective
years, and an $3,562,000 charge for an arbitration settlement with BSI in 1999.

The Company does not evaluate performance or allocate resources based on assets and, as such, it does not prepare balance
sheets for its business segments, other than those of its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Revenues from the U.S. government were $143,000,000 in 2001, $132,400,000 in 2000, and $149,300,000 in 1999, representing
approximately 27%, 19%, and 16% of total revenue in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The majority of these revenues are
attributed to the IGS business segment. The U.S. government was the only customer accounting for more than 10% of consoli-
dated revenue in each year of the three-year period ended December 31, 2001.

International markets, particularly Europe and Asia, continue in importance to each of the Company's business segments,
except for IGS. The Company’s operations are subject to and may be adversely affected by a variety of risks inherent in doing
business internationally, such as government policies or restrictions, currency exchange fluctuations, and other factors.
Following is a summary of third-party revenues and long-lived assets by principal geographic area. For purposes of this
presentation, revenues are attributed to geographic areas based on customer location. Long-lived assets include property,
plant, and equipment, capitalized software development costs, investments in affiliates and other non-current assets. Assets
have been allocated to geographic areas based on their physical location.

Revenues ‘ Long-lived Assels
2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)

United States $281,734 $333,980 $438,649 $115,920 $113271 $130,762
Europe 146,406 188,212 285,548 10,291 13,462 24,194
Asia Pacific 49,243 85,662 98,773 3,067 7,826 14,167
Other International 54,678 82,600 91910 2,239 2,874 3,878
Total $532,061 $600,454 $914,880 $131,517 $137,433 $173,001

Note 13 — Related Party Transactions

BSI: The Company maintains an equity ownership position in BSI, the developer and owner of MicroStation, a software product
for which the Company serves as a nonexclusive distributor. Under the Company’s distributor agreement with BSI, the Company
purchases MicroStation products for resale to third parties. The Company’s purchases from BSI were approximately §1,350,000
in 2001, $3,830,000 in 2000, and $2,980,000 in 1999. The Company’s sales to BSI were approximately $1,130,000 in 2001, with a
receivables balance at December 31, 2001, of $407,000. There were no sales to BSI for 2000 and 1999. At December 31, 2001,
and 2000, the Company had amounts payable to BSI of approximately $560,000 and $2,310,000, respectively.

On December 27, 2000, the Company sold its MicroStation-based civil engineering, plotting, and raster conversion software
product lines to BSI for initial proceeds of approximately $24,600,000, consisting of $13,600,000 in cash and an $11,000,000
note due in quarterly installments through December 2003. In the first quarter of 2001, the Company reported an additional
gain from the BSI transaction of approximately $4,200,000 as the initial consideration for the sale, and the Company’s note
receivable from BSI was increased based upon a revised calculation of transferred maintenance revenues for the products sold
to BSI, as provided for in the original sale agreement. The agreement also provided for additional purchase price consideration
based on renewals through December 1, 2001, of maintenance contracts related to the product lines. The Company recorded
this additional purchase price consideration of §5,900,000 in December 2001. This additional gain, revision, purchase price
consideration, and the proceeds received at closing of the transaction resulted in gains of approximately $10,100,000 and
$23,000,000, respectively; in the 2001 and 2000 consolidated statements of operations and cash flows. This resulted in an
increase in the note of $10,100,000 in the year 2001,
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Under the agreement, the Company may continue to sell and support MicroStation and certain other BSI products, including
the product lines sold to BSI, through reseller agreements with BSI. The operating results of all of the Company’s business
segments, except Z/1 Imaging, are affected by this agreement. The gross margin of the affected business segments has been
negatively impacted by the loss of maintenance revenue for the product lines sold and by increased software license costs for
purchases from BSI. The resulting negative impact should be partially offset by a reduction in operating expenses of the IMGS
business segment as the segment will no longer be producing or marketing the products sold to BSI.

In first quarter 1999, the Company entered into an arbitration settlement agreement with BSI under which the Company made
payment of $12,000,000 and transferred to BSI ownership of 3,000,000 of the shares of BSI's Class A common stock owned by the
Company. The transferred shares were valued at approximately §3,500,000 on the Company’s books. As a result of the settle-
ment, the Company’s equity ownership in BSI was reduced from approximately 50% to approximately 31%. Additionally, the
Company had a $1,200,000 net receivable from BSI relating to business conducted prior to January 1, 1999, which was written off
in connection with the settlement. The Company recorded a nonoperating charge to earnings of $8,562,000 in connection with
this settlement, representing the portion of settlement costs not previously accrued. This charge is included in “Arbitration settle-
ment” in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 1999. See “Arbitration Settlement” included
in MD&A for further discussion of the Company's arbitration proceeding and business relationship with BSI.

Zefss: Zeiss, a manufacturer of aerial cameras and photogrammetric scanning systems, has 4 40% ownership interest in Z/1
Imaging, a 60%-owned and consolidated subsidiary of the Company formed October 1, 1999. See “Minority Interest” in Note 1
for a discussion of the formation of Z/I Imaging. Z/1 Imaging and Zeiss are party to various license, supply, and reseller agree-
ments under which the two companies sell products and services to each other, and Zeiss subsidiaries in Europe provide
services to Z/1 Imaging subsidiaries in that region through various administrative, marketing, and development services agree-
ments. Z/1 Imaging’s purchases from Zeiss totaled §7,228,000 in 2001, $12,151,000 in 2000, and $1,770,000 during the
three-month period ended December 31,1999, Related payables to Zeiss were $3,300,000, $2,498,000, and $3,003,000 at
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Z/1 Imaging’s other transactions with Zeiss during these periods were
insignificant to the Company’s consolidated results and financial position.

3Dlmbs: As initial proceeds from the July 2000 sale of its Intense3D graphics accelerator division, the Company received
approximately 3,000,000 (excluding shares in escrow) of the common shares of 3Dlabs. In March 2001, the Company received
approximately 7,591,000 shares valued at $10,000,000. The Company now has an equity ownership interest of approximately
37% in 3Dlabs (see Notes 1 and 15). Under its agreement with 3Dlabs, the Company served as intermediary between 3Dlabs
and SCI (the Company’s contract manufacturer) for manufacturing performed by SCI for 3Dlabs. In 2001, this obligation to
serve as intermediary expired. The Company earned no margin on the inventory purchased from SCI and sold to 3Dlabs, and
recorded no associated revenues or cost of revenues in its results of operations. Gross billings to 3Dlabs during 2001 and the
second half of 2000 totaled $17,833,000 and $14,114,000, respectively. At December 31, 2001, and 2000, the Company’s receiv-
ables from 3Dlabs for inventory purchased on its behalf totaled $1,543,000 and $6,271,000, respectively. This non-trade
receivable is included in “Other current assets” in the Company'’s December 31, 2001, and 2000, consolidated balance sheets.

Note 14 — Shareholder Rights Plan

On March 4, 2002, the Board approved an amendment to the Shareholder Rights Plan that was adopted on August 25, 1993. As
part of this plan, the Board declared a distribution of one common stock purchase right (a “Right”) for each share of the
Company’s common stock outstanding on September 7, 1993. Each Right entitles the holder to purchase from the Company one
common share at a price of $65, subject to adjustment. The Rights are not exercisable until the occurrence of certain events
related to a person or a group of affiliated or associated persons acquiring, obtaining the right to acquire, or commencing a
tender offer or exchange offer, the consummation of which would result in beneficial ownership by such a person or group of
15% or more of the outstanding common shares of the Company. Rights will also become exercisable in the event of certain
mergers or an asset sale involving more than 50% of the Company’s assets or earnings power. Upon becoming exercisable, each
Right will allow the holder, except the person or group whose action has triggered the exercisability of the Rights, to either buy
securities of Intergraph or securities of the acquiring company, depending on the form of the transaction, having a value of twice
the exercise price of the Rights. The Rights trade with the Company’s common stock. The Rights are subject to redemption at
the option of the Board at a price of $.01 per Right until the occurrence of certain events, and are exchangeable for the
Company’s common stock at the discretion of the Board under certain circumstances. The Rights expire on March 5, 2012.




Note 15 — Acquisitions and Divestitures

Marian: In January 2001, the Company acquired the MARIAN materials management business unit from debis Systemhaus
Industry GmbH of Germany for a purchase price consisting of 2,000,000 Euros paid at closing and additional payments due
March 1, 2002, and 2003 to be calculated as 15% of the annual revenues earned by the Company from the sale of MARIAN
products in 2001 and 2002. The Company’s payment at closing approximated $1,820,000 and is included in “Business acquisi-
tions” in the Company’s consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2001. The Company accounted
for the acquisition as a purchase of the intangible assets (amortized over a useful life of 2 years) and software rights (of which
the intangible assets are amortized over a useful life of 4 years and the maintenance contract is amortized over a useful life of 3
years). The unamortized balance, approximately $1,700,000 at December 31, 2001, is included in “Other assets” in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet. The accounts and results of operations of MARIAN have been combined with those of
PP&O since the January 1, 2001, effective date of the acquisition using the purchase method of accounting. This acquisition
did not result in changes to the Company’s reporting segments, and has not had a material effect on the Company’s results of
operations, nor does the Company expect SFAS 142 to have a material effect on the accounting for this acquisition (see
“Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements” in MD&A).

Mid World: In the first quarter of 2001, the Company announced its intention to sell its Mid World operations and convert
thern into distributorships. During the first quarter of 2001, in connection with its ongoing efforts to sell its Mid World opera-
tions, the Company performed a detailed review of all outstanding contracts, commitments, and receivables in the region. A
memorandum of understanding was reached on the anticipated completion of the largest contract in the region, resulting in
charges to Mid World operations totaling §1,629,000 in the first quarter, including a §923,000 increase to cost of revenues for
projected cost overruns and a $706,000 charge to general and administrative expense for the settlement of outstanding receiv-
ables for the project.

In April 2001, the Company closed the sales of it operations in Turkey and Kuwait. Effective July 2001, the Company also closed
the sale of its Saudi Arabian operation and recorded a $680,000 gain. The company also expects to complete the sale of
Intergraph Middle East, Ltd. (“IMEL"), based in Abu Dubai, United Arab Emirates, by the end of first quarter 2002, and booked
an impairment reserve of $150,000 in third quarter of 2001 in anticipation of an expected foss on the IMEL sale. The gain on
Saudi Arabia, net of the IMEL impairment reserve, is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 2001 consolidated statements
of operations and cash flows. Upon completion of the IMEL sale, the Company will no longer have any subsidiaries in the
region and will do business solely through distributors. The Company will retain responsibility for some of the Mid World
contracts in effect at the date of the sale.

None of the Mid World operations were material to the Company, and the Company believes the sale of these operations will not
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated operating results or cash flow. Mid World’s consolidated revenues and
after-tax loss for 2001 totaled approximately $11,813,000 and $3,257,000, respectively. Consolidated revenues and after-tax
losses for 2000 were $21,883,000 and $1,490,000, respectively, and for 1999 were $25,979,000 and $2,435,000, respectively. Net
assets for the region totaled approximately $6,000,000 at December 31, 2001. Net assets for December 31, 2000, and 1999
totaled approximately $9,000,000 and $11,000,000, respectively.

3Dlabs: On July 21,2000 (but with effect from July 1, 2000), the Company sold the Intense3D graphics accelerator division of
ICS to 3Dlabs, a supplier of integrated hardware and software graphics accelerator solutions for workstations and design
professionals. As initial consideration for the acquired assets, 3Dlabs issued to the Company approximately 3,600,000 of its
common shares, subject to a registration rights agreement and a three-year irrevocable proxy granted to 3Dlabs, with an
aggregate market value of approximately $13,200,000 on the date of closing, Fifteen percent of the shares are in escrow to
cover any potential claims against the Company by 3Dlabs.

An earn-out provision in the agreement provided for possible additional consideration, payable March 31, 2001, in stock and/or
cash at the option of 3Dlabs, based on various performance measures for the Intense3D operations through the end of 2000,
including the financial contribution of the division, the retention of key employees, the delivery schedules of new products, and
the performance of products developed by the division. In December 2000, the Company recorded a receivable of $8,550,000
(included in “Other current assets” in the December 31, 2000, consolidated balance sheet) for additional consideration due
from 3Dlabs. The Company considered this amount to be the minimum earn-out due from 3Dlabs and, as such, recorded a
gain of approximately $15,700,000 in its 2000 results of operations based on the initial proceeds from the sale and this
estimated minimum earn-out. This gain is included in “Gains on sales of assets™ in the 2000 consolidated statements of opera-
tions and cash flows.
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On March 31, 2001, the Company recorded an additional $600,000 gain as a result of the final calculation and settlement of the
earn-out provisions. The total earn-out of $10,000,000, $3,550,000 of which was accrued in fourth quarter 2000 (see above), was
paid to the Company in the form of stock of 3Dlabs, increasing the Company’s ownership interest to approximately 37%, although
this interest is subject to a registration rights agreement and a three-year irrevocable proxy granted to 3Dlabs. This gain is
included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 2001 consolidated statements of operations and cash flows. As a result of the final
earn-out settlement, all contingencies and related transitional services associated with the sale of Intense3D have been satisfied.

The market value of the Company’s investment in 3Dlabs is included in “Investments in affiliates” in the Company’s consoli-
dated balance sheets. On March 11, 2002, Creative Technology Ltd. (“Creative”) signed a definitive agreement to acquire
3Dlabs in a stock and cash transaction. Under the terms of the agreement, Creative will purchase the 3Dlabs stock for $3.60 per
share, with one-third in cash and two-thirds being converted to Creative stock. The transaction is expected to close in late
second quarter 2002, See Note 1 for information regarding the valuation of this investment at December 31, 2001, and
December 31, 2000. For the period in 2000 prior to the effective date of the sale, the Intense3D division earned operating
income of approximately $8,500,000 on third-party revenues of $34,000,000. Full year 1999 third-party revenue for the
division approximated $38,000,000, with operating results at an approximate breakeven level.

SGI: On September 8, 2000, the Company formed a strategic alliance with SGI, a worldwide provider of high-performance
computing and advanced graphics solutions, under which SGI acquired certain of the Company’s hardware production
business assets, including ICS' Zx10 family of workstations and servers, and the Company became a reseller of SGI products,
offering its software application solutions on the SGI platform. The Company received $299,000 as initial cash consideration
for the assets sold to SGI. The agreement contained a provision, which would provide additional purchase price consideration
if revenues from the product lines sold reached a certain level in the one-year period after the closing date. The Company did
not earn any additional purchase price consideration under this provision. The Company recorded a loss from the initial cash
proceeds of this transaction of approximately $280,000. This loss is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 2000 consoli-
dated statements of operations and cash flows. The Company has completed all intermediary and transitional services
responsibilities related to this sale,

Singapore: On November 30, 2000, the Company sold its Singapore subsidiary for approximately $2,700,000, primarily in the
form of a long-term note receivable (included in “Other assets” in the December 31, 2000, consolidated balance sheet). The
consideration becomes due in varying installments beginning June 30, 2001, and ending December 31, 2004. At December 31,
2001, the balances on the notes in the consolidated balance sheet include approximately $600,000 in “Other current assets” and
$1,500,000 in “Other assets.” The Company will continue to sell products into Singapore and related territories through a
distributor arrangement with the purchaser. The loss on this transaction of $1,300,000 is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in
the 2000 consolidated statements of operations and cash flows. Revenues for the disposed subsidiary and related territories
totaled $8,153,000 for the period in 2000 prior to their sale, and $8,316,000 in 1999, with operating results at an approximate
breakeven level for both years. Assets of the disposed subsidiary and related territories at December 31, 1999, totaled $5,054,000.

BSI: See Note 13 for a discussion of the December 2000 sale of the Company’s civil, plotting, and raster product lines to BSL.

PID: InJanuary 1999, the Company acquired PID, an Israeli software development company, for $5,655,000. At closing, the
Company paid $2,180,000 in cash with the remainder due in varying installments through January 2002. The accounts and
results of operations of PID have been combined with those of the PP&O0 business segment of the Company since the date of
acquisition using the purchase method of accounting. This acquisition has not had a material effect on the Company’s results
of operations.

IngerCAP: In April 1999, the Company sold InterCAP Graphics Systems, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary, to Micrografx, Inc.,
a global provider of enterprise graphics software, for $12,150,000, consisting of $3,853,000 in cash received at closing, deferred
payments received in September and October 1999 totaling $2,500,000, and a $5,797,000 convertible subordinated debenture
due March 2002, See Note 5 for a discussion of the terms of this debenture and its valuation at December 31, 2001, 2000, and
1999. The resulting gain on this transaction of $11,505,000 is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 1999 consolidated
statements of operations and cash flows. The subsidiary did not have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations
for the period in 1999 prior to its sale. InterCAP’s results of operations were included in the “Intergraph Software” business
segment in the Company’s 1999 segment presentations.




VeriBest: See Note 4 for a discussion of the Company’s October 1999 sale of VeriBest, Inc.

SCI: In November 1998, the Company sold substantially all of its U.S. manufacturing assets to SCI, a wholly owned subsidiary
of SCI Systems, Inc., and SCI assumed responsibility for manufacturing substantially all of the Company’s hardware products.
In addition, the Company licensed certain related intellectual property to SCI, and SCI employed approximately 300 of the
Company's manufacturing employees. The total purchase price was $62,404,000, with the final purchase price installment of
$19,919,000 received on January 12, 1999. The first quarter 1999 payments are included in “Net proceeds from sales of assets”
in the Company’s 1999 consolidated statement of cash flows. These proceeds were used primarily to retire debt. As part of this
transaction, SCI retained the option to sell back to the Company any inventory included in the initial sale which had not been
utilized in the manufacture and sale of finished goods within six months of the date of the sale (the “unused inventory”). On
June 30, 1999, SCI exercised this option and sold to the Company unused inventory having a value of approximately
$10,200,000 in exchange for a cash payment of $2,000,000 and a short-term installment note payable in the principal amount
of $8,200,000. This note bore interest at a rate of 9% and was paid in three monthly installments concluding October 1, 1999.
The Company’s payments to SCI were funded primarily from existing cash balances.

Note 16 — Summary of Quarterly Information — Unaudited

Quarier Ended March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31, 2001:

Revenues $144,122 $127,791 $127,856 $133,092
Gross profit 58,409 57,962 56,150 60,805
Reorganization credit (charges) 384 — — —
Income (loss) from operations 2,897 1,381 2,164 1,645
Gains on sales of assets 4,831 — 530 5,882
Net income (loss) 4,967 1,830 1,242 11,903
Net income (loss) per share - basic 190 04 02 24
- diluted 10 04 02 23
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 49,569 49,638 49,655 49,761
- diluted 50,960 52,018 51,854 51,845
Year ended December 31, 2000:
Revenues $199,405 $187,981 $158,937 $144131
Gross profit 72,228 69,007 54,449 56,593
Reorganization credit (charges) — — (3,362) (5,136)
Income (loss) from operations 358 (2,728) {12,887) (8,384)
Gains on sales of assets 3633 3491 12,065 30,357
Net income (loss) 1,025 (3,662) (5279) 18,011
Net income (loss) per share - basic and diluted 02 (07 (1D 36
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 49254 49,330 49 435 49,480
- diluted 49 475 49,330 49 435 50,000

For complete descriptions of the net gains on asset sales and reorganization charges included in the Company’s results of
operations, see Notes 13 and 15 and “Gains on Sales of Assets” and “Reorganization Charges” included in MD&A.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has never declared or paid a cash dividend on its common stock. It is the present policy of the Company's Board
of Directors to retain all earnings to finance the Company's operations. In addition, payment of dividends is restricted by the
Company's term loan and revolving credit agreement.

Price Range of Common Stock

Since April 1981, Intergraph common stock has traded on The Nasdag Stock Market under the symbol INGR. As of January 31, 2002,
there were 49,919,242 shares of common stock outstanding, held by 3,924 shareholders of record. The following table sets forth, for
the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices of the Company's common stock as reported on The Nasdaq Stock Market.

2001 2000
Period High Low High Low
First Quarter $113/8 $5 3/4 $9 $4 1/4
Second Quarter 15 31/32 8§ 11/32 §7/8 5
Third Quarter 15 1/16 8 11/16 7 15/16 3 1/4
Fourth Quarter 137/8 8 1/4 7172 5 5/32
Transfer Agent and Registrar Independent Auditors
Computershare Investor Services, LLC Ernst & Young LLP
2 North LaSalle Street 1901 Sixth Avenue North
Chicago, 1L 60602 Suite 1900 AmSouth/Harbert Plaza
(312) 588-4992 Birmingham, AL 35203

Form 10-K

A copy of the Company’s Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is available
without charge upon written request to Shareholder Relations, Intergraph Corporation, Huntsville, AL 35894-0001.

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of Intergraph Corporation will be held May 16, 2002, at the Corporate offices in Huntsville, Alabama.

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Intergraph Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Intergraph Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation, We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Intergraph
Corporation and subsidiaries, at December 31,2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Birmingham, Alabama

January 30, 2002, M & LLp
except for Note 14 and the eighth

paragraph of Note 15, as to which the date is
March 11, 2002
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Chief Financial Officer

William E. Salter
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Thomas J. Lee
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David Vance Lucas
John R. Wynn Vice President and General Counsel

Larry T. Miles
Vice President, Finance

Eugene H. Wrobel
Vice President and Treasurer

Special Notice to Shareholders: Quarterly Reports Online

In this day of instant communication, we want to take advantage of the technology that allows us to
provide you with quarterly financial results as quickly as possible. In 2002, we plan to report quarterly
results to you online. We have found that the printed and mailed reports usually arrive two to three
weeks after we announce quarterly results. Online, the reports will be available to you just hours after
we publish results in a news release.

We will put a link to the quarterly report on our website at wwwintergraph.com, and we will also notify
you via e-mail, if you like. If you have any questions, please contact us at the following address:
Investor Relations
Intergraph Corporation, I%2003
Huntsville, AL 35894
Phone 256-730-2184




Corrpomfre Heao’]quarfcers

Intergraph Corporation
Huntsville, Alabama 35894-0001
1-256-730-2000

For more information, contact an Intergraph
representative or call:

United States

Intergraph Corporation 1-256-730-2000
Intergraph Communications 1-877-818-4171
Intergraph Government Solutions 1-800-747-2232
Intergraph Mapping & GIS Solutions 1-800-791-3357
Intergraph Process, Power & Offshore 1-800-260-0246
Intergraph Public Safety 1-877-818-4170
Intergraph Utilities 1-877-818-4171
Z/1 Imaging 1-888-538-0713
Asia-Pacific 61-2-9929-2888
Canada 1-403-569-5500
Europe 31-23-5606333
www.intergraph.com

Intergroph is an equal opportunity, offirmative cfion employer.
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